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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may
be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with
neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast
future profitability.

Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging
nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or
countries in which the companies operate.

Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is
publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue
paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have access
to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on
GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of
this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from, or in reliance upon, the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Jian
ePayment Systems Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept responsibility includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have
been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are
founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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| would like to announce the audited operating results for the
year ended 31 December 2004 (this year) on behalf of the Board
of Directors of Jian ePayment Systems Limited (the Company)
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

In this year, the Group had a sharp increase in its operating
income as compared with the preceding year. For the year ended
31 December 2004, its turnover was RMB8,173,000, representing
an amazing increase of 140% over last year, while the loss
attributable to shareholders amounted to approximately
RMB35,601,000, decreasing by 30% as compared with that of
last year.

The Group has been committed to developing the Jian ePayment
System into a large electronic payment system widely adopted
in China. In 2004, on top of boosting the sale of technological
equipment for more operating income, the Group put great effort
into the marketing activities of “One Card Multiple Uses” in
Wuhan and Beijing, and sought to expand its business by way
of acquisition and merger.

The electronic parking equipment and system technology
launched to the market by the Group a few years ago have
gradually become the leading technological products in the PRC
market after the harsh market competition. The existing
customers of the Group increased their orders of equipment
progressively while revenue from the transaction levies regained
its growth momentum. The sale of equipment and the transaction
levies are expected to grow faster in 2005, which will result in a
greater market share.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
2 Z B B 2 &£ 8 B A 7
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Group has been seeking opportunities of joint development
of the electronic payment market in China. Based on the
satisfactory results of the promotion of “One Card Multiple Uses”
system in Wuhan, the Group and Wuhan Traffic IC Card
Management Limited, under the guidance and motivation from
the relevant departments of Wuhan Municipal Government,
cooperated to establish a “One Card Multiple Uses” system,
which was similar to the Octopus Cards of Hong Kong. The
project was conducted in accordance with the promotion mode
of Jian ePayment smart card system and on the basis of more
than 1,000,000 Traffic IC Cards being issued in Wuhan. As at
22 March 2004, the Group and Wuhan Transportation Group
Company Limited entered into an agreement to subscribe for
70% of the enlarged registered capital in Wuhan Traffic IC Card
Management Limited. (On 24 February 2005, the Group and
Wuhan Transportation Group Company Limited entered into the
formal contract and articles of association of the joint venture to
restructure Wuhan Transportation Group Company Limited. We
are now going through the procedures for approving the
establishment of the company in accordance with the provisions
of the PRC laws.)

Turning to 2005, the Board of Directors has no doubt that the
Group will continuously record substantive growth in operating
income to an extent that the Company may have sufficient funds
for various expenses and ordinary operation. It is also confident
that the merger and acquisition of Wuhan Transportation Group
Company Limited can be completed and there will be a
satisfactory progress on other cooperation projects, which will
bring about new income growth and rooms for business
development to the Company. Ultimately, these will make Jian
Smart Pass the convenient card generally owned and frequently
used by the citizens of a number of cities in China.

I would like to take this occasion to present thanks to the
management and staff members of the Group on behalf of the
Board of Directors. Besides, | would like to thank shareholders,
investors, business partners, customers and vendors for their
support and encouragement given to the Group in the previous
year. My thanks are also extended to lawyers, auditors,
consultants and relevant enterprises for their help and support.

Chairman
CHIN YING HOI

Beijing, the PRC, 29 March 2005
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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Jian ePayment
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Systematic Technology
Group Limited**
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Beijing Jian ePayment Zhengzhou Jian-O’ Yuan ITS

Science and Technology

Systems Co. Ltd.***

Wuhan Jian ePayment

Jian epayment (China) International

Co. Ltd.*** (“Jian-O' Yuan") Science and Technology Holdings Limited**
0. Ltd. - Co. Ltd.*** - -
(“Beijing Jian ePayment”) — (“Wuhan Jian ePayment”) ARRE
BT 2 o E’g%%%gigf@%\% W Not yet commenced business
BRER WY - 0 RN R
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Operation of the

ePayment System Jian ePayment System

ki N A
EEEERBEREALS
Development and production
of integrated intelligent
network system, computer
software and hardware,
network system equipment,
technical service, technical
consultancy and sale,
development and operation
of the Jian ePayment System

* RHASESEMKT *  incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
L RERBRZESEMA **incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
Hkok E/\\\I:P bﬁj * kK

established in the PRC
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bt #% B B FINANCIAL REVIEW
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2004 2003 Change

AR® T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 Turnover 8,173 3,407 140%
EHNEE Gross profit 4,177 2,742 52%
% 2R P (k&5 18 Loss attributable to shareholders (35,601) (51,128) -30%
BREXREE Basic loss per share (0.09) 0.13 -31%

AEBHE-ZTOF+_A=+—HLEE2FZ
BEEA A ARES 1730007 © th - EE =4[
HEA140% c REEARTEEBEHAAR
#35,601,0007t * EREREE RO ARE0.09
5T o

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately RMB8,173,000, representing an

increase of 140% over that of 2003. Loss attributable to

shareholders for the year was approximately RMB35,601,000,
while basic loss per share was RMBO0.09.

REMBDZEXE TURNOVER BY PRODUCT

—ZEZTWNEF —ET=F =)
2004 2003 Change

AR%TT ARBTFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000
SHE M4 REAHKA Sales of hardware and software 6,694 1,300 415%
RPIULE Transaction levies 1,479 2,107 -30%
#Et Total 8,173 3,407 140%
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The Group’s revenue for 2004 came from sales revenue of Jian

ePayment software and hardware sales of approximately

RMB6,694,000 and transaction levies of approximately
RMB1,479,000. The sales of electronic parking hardware and

software increased from second quarter this year. The increase
in the sales revenue was a result of the launch of roadside

parking smart card readers in the existing cities where the

electronic parking fee collection system was installed. The

decrease in transaction levies over the corresponding period

last year was mainly due to Governmental construction and

redevelopment work on roads in some cities that has already

installed electronic parking collection system. This made part of

the collection transaction levies temporarily suspended and the

Group’s turnover in transaction levies decreased accordingly.

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Loss attributable to shareholders for the year was approximately
RMB35,601,000, a fall of about 30% over the corresponding
period last year. The decrease in the net loss over the
corresponding period last year was mainly due to the significant
increase in turnover and, as such the increase in gross profit. In
addition, the Group’s strengthened cost-control had also reduced

the total expenses by 22% over the corresponding period last

year.
Bt B R FINANCIAL CONDITION
BER BHER
—2EQNF —FT=F
+=ZA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H g
As at 31 As at 31
December 2004 December 2003 Change
AR FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ReBReFEY Cash and cash equivalents 6,428 11,721 -45%
BEE Total assets 21,209 61,154 -65%
& R = Shareholders’ funds (9,504) 26,095 -136%
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 5,305 - 100%
TENLE & () Current ratio (Times) 0.51 0.63 -19%
MEE Total assets

REEAEBENBREER LFREAMP65% 4
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13,079,0007¢ °
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The Group’s total assets in the Year decreased by 65% to
RMB21,209,000, mainly comprising fixed assets of approximately
RMB8,130,000 and current assets (including cash) of
approximately RMB13,079,000.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group currently has cash and cash equivalents of
RMB6,428,000 in total, while the current ratio has changed from
0.63 times for 2003 to 0.51 times this year. The Group’s working
capital requirement has been further improved with the financial
support as much as HK$5,000,000 granted by Mr. Chin Ying
Hoi. Such funds are unsecured, interest-free and not repayable
within twelve months.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
#? X B B R #£ 8 R 24 7
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEF
R-ZBZFMEF-_A=1+—H ARELEEH
HEE -

i
ARERBEE  BERXZHUET - X
ARBFHE  ARNFREBT ETRARBZE
RERIRE R ARENEENEKRZINERE
SRR o

Charges on Assets
As at 31 December 2004, the Group did not have any charge
on its assets.

Exchange Rate Exposure

All the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar or Renminbi.
As the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi were relatively stable during the Year, the Group

was not exposed to material foreign exchange risk.

ANER Human Resources
As at 31 As at 31
December 2004 December 2003
Total number Total number
of staff of staff
R-ZZSZNF RZEE=F
+=-ZHA=+—H +=-A=+—H
ETIEH BIHE
T8 Management 16 26
HERMISEE Sales and Marketing 12 21
PR R 4 e Purchasing and Supplies 3 4
HE Production 41 6
o Kk R Research and Development 10 18
B s RATHR Finance and Administration 9 18
@t Total 91 93
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In 2004, the Group had adjusted the human resources structure
according to its business needs by conducting rather large-
scale increase/decrease integration. As a result, the number of
management staff reduced by about 38%, and that of production
staff increased by about 6 times. With the integration of R&D
projects and the cut-down of redundant labour, the number of
R&D, finance and administration personnel had been streamlined
and slashed by 44% and 50% respectively. Besides, with the
headcount decrease, the Group’s salaries and wages had also
dropped by 55% to approximately RMB3,809,000 (2003:
RMB8,503,000).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing industry practice.
The Group also provides Mandatory Provident Fund benefits for
its employees in Hong Kong and the Statutory Retirement
Scheme for its employees in China.

The Group recognises the importance of staff training. Apart
from on-the-job training, during the Year, the Group had regularly
provided internal and external training for its staff to enhance
their technical skills or product knowledge.

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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CONTINGENT LIABILITY
As at 31 December 2004, the Group had no outstanding
contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
Save for the Company’s investments in its subsidiaries, the Group
did not have any significant investment.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In this year, the Group had a sharp increase in its operating
income as compared with the preceding year. Both the
production and sale of equipment software and hardware showed
good performance. The existing customers of the Group have
increased their orders of equipment progressively. The sale of
equipment, the number of Jian Smart Pass in issue and the
transaction levies are expected to grow faster in 2005 which will
result in a greater market share.

As at 31 December 2004, software and hardware sales amounts
approximately RMB6,694,000, approximately increasing by four
times over the year 2003.

With the increasing orders of equipment placed by the existing
customers of the Group, the number of Jian Smart Pass in issue
had a growth accordingly. The number increased by about
147,000, a 47% growth from the preceding year. The
accumulated number of Jian Smart Pass in issue was about
650,000, representing an increase by approximately 30% from
the end of 2008.

The existing customers of the Group increased their orders of
equipment and put them into operation gradually. The revenue
of the Group regained its growth momentum. The increase in
sales revenue was mainly due to the launch of roadside parking
smart card readers in the existing cities where the electronic
parking fee collection systems were installed. The fall in
transaction levies as compared with the corresponding period
of last year was attributed to the effect of municipal construction
activities and subway works in certain cities (Wuhan, Beijing,
Nanning, etc.) where the electronic parking fee collection
systems were installed, resulting in the temporary suspension
of several roadside parking fee collection systems and the fall
in the revenue from using smart cards.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
#? X B B R #£ 8 R 24 7
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It is expected that the year 2005 will see a faster development
in the new market. All the number of new customers, the sale of
equipment and the market share will increase further. With the
declining effect of municipal construction works on the parking
card business, the Group expects that the transaction levies by
the system will rally steadily.

Based on the promotion of “One Card Multiple Uses” system in
Wuhan, the Group and Wuhan Traffic IC Card Management
Limited, under the guidance and motivation from the relevant
departments of Wuhan Municipal Government, cooperated to
establish a “One Card Multiple Uses” system, which was similar
to the Octopus Cards of Hong Kong. The project was conducted
in accordance with the promotion mode of Jian ePayment smart
card system and on the basis of more than 1,000,000 Traffic IC
Cards being issued in Wuhan. As at 22 March 2004, the Group
and Wuhan Transportation Group Company Limited entered into
an agreement to subscribe for 70% of the enlarged registered
capital in Wuhan Traffic IC Card Management Limited. (On 24
February 2005, the Group and Wuhan Transportation Group
Company Limited entered into the formal contract and articles
of association of the joint venture to restructure Wuhan
Transportation Group Company Limited. We are now going
through the procedures for approving the establishment of the
company in accordance with the provisions of the PRC laws.)

The Group has been extending the use of the commercial smart
card reader system to Beijing and has it made economic
contribution. The consumption by using the smart card had an
increase of approximately five times as compared with the
corresponding period of last year and amounted to approximately
RMB6,300,000. Correspondingly, the transaction levies also rose
up. With a preliminary result of the Group’s promotion of “One
Card Multiple Uses” system in Beijing, the Group and Beijing
Municipal Administration & Communications Card Co., Ltd. (it
RMHBRZE—RBER DA signed a cooperation agreement on
30 December 2004 whereby the Group will develop the “One
Card Multiple Uses” market in Beijing hand in hand with an
enterprise directly under Beijing Municipal Government
specializing in this business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In response to the ever-changing market demands, the Group
strengthened the research and development and made sustained
efforts in the extensive promotion and development of
commercial applications as well as value-added development
of “One Card Multiple Uses” system. The measures already made
a substantial progress.

During this year, the research and development costs was
approximately RMB779,000, representing 10% of the sales
revenue.

To maintain the position as one of the leaders in the production
of payment terminal equipment in China, the Group finished the
research and development of hand-held collector P130 and infra-
red hand-held collector P115 in this year and the products have
already been in use with positive feedback widely came from
the users. The registration of the related intellectual property is
in progress.

The Group has developed J2000-2 meter which is compatible
with Guangzhou ITS Systems and the internal test was
completed. The product is undergoing the formal test in the
potential customer, Guangzhou Yangchengtong Co., Ltd. (& /M
FWEERA

A]), in preparation for trial production.

The research and development of J2000-3 meter which is
compatible with Shanghai All-in-one Public Transportation Card
(E/BAHZE— K1) has also been completed. The product
has already passed the internal test as well as the informational
test and process of product finalization conducted by Shanghai
Public Transportation Card Company Limited (E/8 A £ @B
B 17 B BR A A)). Now it is ready for production.

The core read-write module, which is compatible with the “All-
in-one” card of Beijing Municipal Administration &
Communications, jointly developed by the Group and Beijing
Municipal Administration & Communications Card Co., Ltd. (it
KRB R — <872 8]) has been at the stage of internal test.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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In line with the demands for new functions of the back office
system as well as the actual progress of “One Card Multiple
Uses” project in various districts, the Research and Development
Department of the Group has been engaged in the development
of an upgraded back office system software which will include
new functions such as information exchange, separation and
settlement between the system and “Shanghai All-in-one Public
Transportation Card” and other systems in use, and improve the
existing functions such as data storage, inquiry, printing and
security. The project has already achieved preliminary result.

The Group will provide continual support to “One Card Multiple
Uses” Information Centres in Wuhan and Beijing for their normal
operations to ensure that information on transactions is correct
and accurate.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chin Ying Hoi (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Guo Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu De Fu

Mr. Li Sui Yang

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Qu Xiao Guo

Mr. Zhang Xiao Jing

Ms. Tung Fong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Century Yard

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 GT
George Town

Grand Cayman

British West Indies

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
17th Floor

Huapu International Plaza

19 Chaoyangmen Wai Dajie

Beijing

The PRC

HONG KONG LIAISON OFFICE
Unit 102, 1/F., Crocodile House |,
50 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Zhengzhou City East Road Branch
No. 1096 Hang Hai East Road

Zhengzhou

Henan Province

The PRC

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
1 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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EEFfF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

FREFEE Mr. Li Sui Yang

FERETMRARME QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Rk B A& Mr. Chan Wing Chung

RERAX AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

HEgEE Mr. Chin Ying Hoi

BEEEE Mr. Liu De Fu

BEREBEHE MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

#h I8 B ot A Mr. Qu Xiao Guo

BRI E Mr. Zhang Xiao Jing

EFLL Ms. Tung Fong

FTERVBFERRE PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Bank of Butterfield International (Cayman) Ltd Bank of Butterfield International (Cayman) Ltd

Butterfield House Butterfield House

P.O. Box 705 P.O.Box 705

George Town George Town

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

British West Indies British West Indies

EERNEBFELE HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

EREEBFELRERAA Hong Kong Registrars Limited

BB Room 1712-1716

BT 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

ERKER1835 183 Queen’s Road East

BRI 1TE Wan Chai

1712—1716% Hong Kong

¥ B ED AUDITORS

BEHESEANIT RSM Nelson Wheeler

MEGETAD Certified Public Accountants

55 7th Floor, Allied Kajima Building

HETITE =% 138 Gloucester Road

BeBEBERELTE Hong Kong

KRR ZERER LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY

I RBE M ESA Commerce and Finance Law Offices

H 714, Huapu International Plaza

R 19 Chaoyangmen Wai Dajie

HE IO KA 195% Beijing

FELERRNETI4E The PRC

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chin Ying Hoi (5 %8), aged 43, is the chairman, the
general manager and the founder of the Group. Mr. Chin is
responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group. He
is a researcher of AL ERIF LR 4 (Research Centre of the
Development and Modernization of the PRC) at Peking University.
He has over 15 years’ experience in strategic planning. He is a
member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
He is also an executive member of Beijing Federation of Industry
and Commerce and a member of All-China Overseas Federation.

Mr. Yang Guo Wei (B Bl {&) , aged 51, is an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Group. Mr. Yang joined the
Company in April 2004 and has more than 21 years experience
in operation and management of various companies and held
senior position in these companies. Mr. Yang had been tertiary
educated in the PRC, Japan and the USA. Mr. Yang has not
held any directorship in any listed companies in the last 3 years.

Mr. Liu De Fu (21 &), aged 73, is a deputy general manager
of the Group. Mr. Liu joined the Group in August 1994 and is
responsible for the financial management of the Group. He
graduated from China Central Financial and Monetary Institute
in 1982. He is a Senior Economist and a member of Chinese
Monetary Society. He has over 10 years’ experience in the field
of banking and corporate finance in the PRC.

Mr. Li Sui Yang (ZEBE3¥), aged 48, is a deputy general manager
of the Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in October 1996 and is
responsible for overall market development of the Group. He
holds a master's degree of economic administration from North-
west China University. He was a lecturer at Xian Statistics College.
He has over ten years’ experience in market development in
retail, real estate and electronics industry in the PRC.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qu Xiao Guo(#i & B) , aged 34, holder of a master degree
in business administration from The Tsinghua University, is the
General Manager of Beijing Long An Xin Finance Consulting
Company Limited. He was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 28 September 2004.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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Mr. Zhang Xiao Jing (&R &), aged 50, holds a bachelor’s
degree of engineering from Beijing Science and Technology
University. He is the managing director of Beijing CNT Manhattan
Building Co. Ltd.. He was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 26th October, 2001.

Ms. Tung Fong (Z %), aged 58, holds a bachelor’'s degree of
international trade from Beijing Foreign Trade Institute. She is
the chairman of Grand Rise Investment Ltd. She was appointed
as independent non-executive director on 26 October 2001.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee have three members, namely, Qu Xiao Guo,
Zhang Xiao Jing and Tung Fong, both being independent non-
executive Directors.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Sheng (Bff%) , aged 36, is the Deputy General Manager
of the Group responsible for overall technical research and
development. Mr. Chen joined the Group in November 2001. He
holds a bachelor’'s degree of Xian University, with professional
title as senior engineer. He was engineer-in-charge of the 27th
Institute of Electronics of Ministry of Information Industry and
Chief Engineer of Zhongzhi Transport Electronics Group. He has
over thirteen years’ experience in the R&D of electronics industry
of China.

Mr. Yang Ji Dong (## %) , aged 55, is the Chief Operation
Officer of the Group responsible for the Board’s Secretariat and
Human Resources Department. Mr. Yang joined the Group in
November 2001. He graduated from Beijing Radio &Television
University, and has over 20 years’ experience in the corporate
management of China.

Ms. Chang Xiang (& #) , aged 50, is responsible for the equity
and finance function of the Group. Ms. Chang joined the Group
in September 2004. She graduated from Shenyang Industry
University, and has over 22 years’ experience in the corporate
financial management of China.
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Mr. Sun Chang Cheng (& &), aged 33, responsible for
research and development of the Group. Mr. Sun joined the
Group in September 2002. He holds a bachelor’'s degree of
North China University of Technology. He was the research and
development engineer of STOVAL Technology Pte. Ltd.,
Singapore, Amatech Singapore Pte. Ltd., German, and the
manager of hardware department of Shan Dong Lu Neng
Intelligence Technology Pte. Ltd. He has over 7 years’ experience
in the electronic engineering industry of China.

Mr. Chan Wing Chung (FR 2k &) , aged 29, is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan joined
the Group in August 2004. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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The directors submit their annual report together with the audited
accounts of Jian ePayment Systems Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the development and operation of a
back end electronic receipt/payment and data recording and
processing software system (“Jian ePayment System “) and
manufacturing and distribution of the associated commercial
applications.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by product category for the
year ended 31 December 2004 is as follows:

—EENF —EE=F

2004 2003

AR® T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BAEREE WA Sales of hardware and software 6,694 1,300
RS E Transaction levies 1,479 2,107
@t Total 8,173 3,407

BE_TZNF+_A=+t—BILFE Kr&E
ZEFBERERE T ERANPEARKLNR ([F
B REHEBHE XFULBZEH -

E3 953
SERAFEZREHNERAZEABERA

ExeRa TRERE -

f#E
SERARFEAFE 2 FESHIENRY BRE
BfaE22 -

BE&E

SECBETEERDFBHANTBHRRME 120
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For the year ended 31 December 2004, substantially all the
turnover and revenue of the Group were attributable to the sales
of hardware and software and transaction levies in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated profit and loss account on page 32.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set
out in Note 12 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2004, the Company’s reserves of
approximately nil (2003: RMB4,887,000) were available for
distribution to its shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 81.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The Company issued a convertible note of HK$10,000,000
(equivalent to RMB10,611,000) to an independent third party
(the “Subscriber”) on 30 November 2002. The convertible note
is convertible into 4,000,000 shares of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$2.50 per share (subject to adjustment).
The Subscriber also has an option to subscribe for a second
convertible note of HK$10,000,000 at an initial conversion price
of HK$3.00 per share within 6 months after 18 November 2002,
the date of subscription agreement. The Subscriber has not
exercised its option to subscribe for the second convertible
note as at 18 May 2003.

The maturity date for each convertible note is the second
anniversary date of its issue. The conversion rights could be
exercised by the convertible note-holders after a period of 12
months from the respective dates of issue of the convertible

notes and each conversion shall be in the integral multiples of
HK$2,000,000.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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The interest of the convertible note is at a rate per annum equal
to one per cent over the prime lending rate for Hong Kong
Dollars as quoted by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited to its customers on the last business day of
the relevant interest period on the principle amount of the note
outstanding.

On 18 November 2004, the Group entered into an agreement
with the convertible note-holders to redeem note principal and
accrued interest of approximately HK$5,300,000, while the
maturity date for the remaining principal of HK$5,000,000 be
extended to 2005.

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted
on 19 November 2001 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the
Company may grant options to the participants of the Share
Option Scheme to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
participants include any employees (including directors) and
certain consultants, suppliers or customers of the Group who,
in the sole discretion of the board of directors or a duly
authorised committee thereof (the “Board”), have contributed to
the Group.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and other share option
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time (“Scheme Limit”).

Any option granted under the Share Option Scheme may be
exercised at any time during a period which shall not be more
than ten years after the date on which the option is granted.

The subscription price will be determined by the Board and will
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
quoted on the Growth Enterprise Market (*“GEM”) on the grant
date, (ii) the average closing price of the shares quoted on the
GEM for the five business days immediately preceding the grant
date and (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of
grant.
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Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December
2004 which have been granted under the scheme are as follows:

it &Ik
H-2%m% T2 fREE fiERH
-B-R EREL EROE ERAH Zt-R OFE  E4RE  GESM  TEHE  LAKRE
Closing
price of
At 31 the
December Company's
Granted Exercise  Lapsed 2004 share before
At1January  during  during  during during  Exercise Grant Exercisable Exercisable date
2004  theyear theyear the year the year price date from until  of grant
g% Directors 4,600,000 - 900000 3,700,000 2357 31/05/2002 31/05/2002 31/05/2007 2.35%TT
HKS$2.35 HK$2.35
BT Employee 13,900,000 - 1,700000 12200000 2.35%7T 31/05/2002 31/05/2002 31/05/2007 2.35%TT
HK$2.35 HK$2.35
TEENAHER - The Groups consulants,
fEEAZP suppliers and customers 13,200,000 - - 13200000 2357 31/05/2002 31/05/2002 31/08/2007 2.35% 7T
HK$2.35 HK$2.35
TEENAHER - The Groups consulants,
EEEARF suppliers and customers 3,000,000 - - 3000000 2.03EL 16/08/2002 16/08/2002 16/08/2007 2.0255 T
HK$2.35 HK$2.35
34,700,000 - 2,600,000 32,100,000
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None of the above options were exercised or repurchased during
the year.

The directors consider that it is not appropriate to state the
value of all the share options that were granted during the year
under the new share options scheme given that the variable
which are critical for the calculation of the value of such share
options cannot be determined. The variables which are critical
for the determination of the value of such share options included,
the subscription price for the shares upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the share options which may be
adjusted under certain circumstances and whether or not such
share options will be exercised by the grantees. In view of the
length of the option period and the possibility that the
subscription price and the number of shares that may be
subscribed thereunder may be adjusted prior to the exercise of
the subscription rights attaching to such share options, the
Directors are of the view that the value of the share options
depends on a number of variables which are either difficult to
ascertain or can only be ascertained subject to a number of
theoretical basis and speculative assumptions. Accordingly, the
Directors believe that any calculation of the value of the options
will not be meaningful and may be misleading to shareholders
in the circumstances.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chin Ying Hoi (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Guo Wei (Chief Executive officer)
Mr. Liu De Fu

Mr. Li Sui Yang

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Qu Xiao Guo

Mr. Zhang Xiao Jing

Ms. Tung Fong

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-
third of directors will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guo Yan Hong tendered his resignation after the expiry of
his service contract for directorate on 28 September 2004. The
Company had newly employed and appointed an executive
director, namely Mr. Yang Guo Wei and an independent non-
executive director, namely Mr. Qu Xiao Guo. Other than the
above, none of the directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transactions set out in Note 26 to the
financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director, controlling
shareholder or management staff of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 14.
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ESREHRE DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
WETTEE+—A=+—H EFHXANAE As at 31 December 2004, the interest of the Directors and the
E?Tﬁ{;%?‘é@fﬂﬁﬁ@i@%@fﬁ%ﬁiﬂg chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying
ﬁfﬁifﬂi;;%K)@Hj,?é\?;a;u%%/@[ﬁgiaﬂz&iﬂi@ﬂEf%’ézﬁ shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations

L BB RV EXVED R b8 L , o
R e . » “ ol within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
ERNARBRS  AREBLARAEEHE g

35016 sk AR I Al 2 AR b i Bl E 5406 5B E = Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which were notified to the Company and
WIBEABEMARZ f‘%fﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂZ%é the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of

(AEREELLBEEN Y AEKZ L £z the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are

VEEB 2 RS KE) - taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
and required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.40 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by Directors, were as follows:

BROREBEROFAEBATE Aggregate long positions in shares and underlying shares
BERE
Number of shares hold
HRBAG
Bz REER 1% 5l fBAER FEER NEER Rl
Aggregate
Personal Family Corporate  percentage of
Director Name of company  Class of shares interests interests interests  long position
BEBEE ARA L@k 2,000,000 18 - 286,800,000 72.2%
LRk AER kip - HERE (M3
ERBETRD BIRGTLI%
20.5%(MizE1) (M&2)
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi The Company ordinary 2,000,000 - 286,800,000 72.2%
underlying shares shares (Note 3)
representing 0.5% representing 71.7%
of the shares of the shares then
then in issue (Notel) issued (Note 2)
HREEE Union Perfect L@k 8AEREE - -
Interational 100572 @k -
Limited EEREET
1 1780%
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi Union Perfect ordinary 84 shares - -
Intemational of US$1.00 each
Limited representing 80%
of the shares then
in issue

Mgkt WHARBRRFHIELEE—HERENY  Note 1:  These are the underlying shares of the Company in respect

RZB@ERG - ZAN LR -_TTNFE+ of which an option was granted to Mr. Chin Ying Hoi (details

— A=+—HE#17.2400,000,0000% i& {3 of which are set out below). The percentage was calculated

BHE on the basis of 400,000,000 shares in issue as at 31 December
2004.

Mize: ZERHBEHBIBLEEREFBERSE  Note2:  These shares were held through Union Perfect International
2z + 5 B ¥ A 80% & 20% 2 Union Perfect Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Chin
International Limitedfi# & Ying Hoi and as to 20% by Ms. Ya Zhen Quan, who is Mr.

Chin Ying Hoi’s mother.

M3 B -_ZZTMHF+-F=+—HE%772 Note3 Based on 400,000,000 shares in issue on 31 December 2004.
400,000,0008% B {7 5+ & -
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RN TR BEEE AGGREGATE LONG POSITIONS IN UNDERLYING SHARES
FLETEYRKBRESTETIR Unlisted physically settled equity derivatives

BEARANR-_ZZE—F+— A+ LBEMBWE  Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme adopted by
Mgt 8 THARARERUIMRESE1TL  the Company on 19 November 2001, the following directors of
ZHEAERAIREALRSRAECCSE L ZEE  the Company have personal interests in options to subscribe for
[ ordinary shares in the Company of HK$0.05 each which have
been granted to them for a consideration of HK$1 as follows:

R-Z22NF

BEAR +=ZA=+-H

EEEB REBERE

IR R & s R AT 62

BEEps RHEBH B2t (i &E1) BRROVTEE BROEE

Outstanding

number

Date of grant of share

and the vesting Vesting under option

period of vested percentage Exercise price as at 31

Name of Director options (Note1) per share December 2004

LLEYES o “ET-FRA=1+—H 75% 2.35% T 2,000,000
Mr Chin Ying Hoi 31 May 2002 HK$2.35

=L —ZE-FRA=1T—H 75% 2.35/8 7T 700,000
Mr.Liu De Fu 31 May 2002 HK$2.35

FREFLE —ZE-FRA=1T—H 75% 2.35/8 7T 1,000,000
Mr Li Sui Yang 31 May 2002 HK$2.35

3,700,000

MizE1: 2XERECRLBE SEFMBET  Note 1: Al options are exercisable to the extent of an additional 25

TE%25% REHENEERAFANZ per cent at the beginning of every full year after the offer of
AT - ZEEREBERLEAREST the grant and they are exercisable in full until the forth year
FABH - after the offer of the grant. All options have a duration of 5

years from the date on which the offer of grant was made.

HIF—ZTZME+—_A=+—H8 A ELZHER#E None of the above options were exercised, cancelled or lapsed
WEBITE - BHSERE - during the year ended 31 December 2004.

BAXEH TN RABBE@ERA - A2  Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the period was the

A HEMMMB AR SER AR EEZ]E@%Z  Company, its subsidiaries or holding company a party to any

B RS AARIZESIEEBEANT 2D arrangements to enable any of the Company’s directors to

EEEAR(BRIFEES) MEZ - acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debt securities (including debentures) of the Company.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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HERO KR BER
FLEPTEORKRAITETA
EEnA

Name of Director

Name of Company

AGGREGATE SHORT POSITIONS IN UNDERLYING SHARES
Unlisted physically settled equity derivatives

DNEER REBROHUE

Number of shares in short position

LLE R

Mr.Chin Ying Hoi

ME: HEXRBERMDEARAMEL 2
35,000,000 fE A& (FF R EX[E & BB
7| —&0) BA 7K 2 A)FT #4172 10,000,0007% 7T
ARBERBE T RNTBRBRESR2.50% T
.3 2 4,000,000 B 15 -

BRAXFHELS  HEEERTETRABS
CETT YR EL:E Y TR N
BT ET7 2 % MR E AN F 1815404
BAGRLE RBRH 2R - ABHBRL RE%
ZEHFAA -

TERR
R-FEME+-A=+— B REZSREHE
Pl E3sekEEMRTIHAMENER - 77
TBRABAL (FEEEERAL DX B
KB BAARFRG AR 2 IE%

NN 39,000,0000% iz 17 » 15 & B
BB 29.75% (M 7E)
39,000,000 shares representing

9.75%o0f shares then issued. (Note)

The Company

Note: These shares in short position were represented by 35,000,000
options granted by the Company, with details shown in the
section of “Share Option Granted “ above and 4,000,000 shares
which are convertible at an initial conversion price of HK$2.50
per share under a HK$10,000,000 convertible note issued by
the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors and chief
executives or their associates has any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO)
as recorded in the register to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.40 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2004, the following substantial shareholder
and person (other than a director or chief executive of the
Company) who have interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

ROFRBAERE Aggregate long positions in shares

BRERERB FERH FRESE
Number of Percentage of

Name of Shareholder shares held shareholding

Union Perfect International Limited 286,800,000 71.7%

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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Aggregate short position in underlying shares
Unlisted physically settled equity derivatives

NGRS REBRHEE
Number of shares

Name of Company in short position

Union Perfect International Limited

Union Perfect International Limited

ME: WEABREBRMDDELADRAMEL Z
35,000,00017 fE Mk 1 (FF R T [E & HER
] —&5) LA R X @1 F7 847 210,000,000/ 7T
ARBRERIE T A ROSRREGR2.50%8 T
,#7.4,000,0008% B 17 °

BRIALH B  UEBEMAL (FEBRESHA
RATBTHABR) RIEZRREF AR ARE
i 75 R B R HI F 336 1% A B T R ik 2 Ak
MRBERD 2 EEHABE -

EEMA
AEER ARAUERBEEGRIMNEER
BERLITRIERTIFRERMML -

TEREFRHEESD
$EZEERERHRESHERREE KA
BEEETALMT -

RER
—BRAHERD
—hfuRAHKERE
HER
—&ARF
-~ hfuZAEF AR

Jian ePayment Systems Limited

# ¥ E B R £ 8 R & A

FiN/NS]| 39,000,000/ * 1B E R & K
BETRGD Z29.75% (B &)
39,000,000 shares representing

9.75% of shares then issued. (Note)

The Company

Note: These shares in short position were represented by 35,000,000
options granted by the Company, with details shown in the
section of “Share option granted” below and 4,000,000 shares
which are convertible at an initial conversion price of HK$2.50
per share under a HK$10,000,000 convertible note issued by
the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) and substantial shareholder
has an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying
shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 23%
— five largest suppliers combined 48%
Sales
- the largest customer 45%
— five largest customers combined 97%
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RZEBEZNF+-_A=1+—H ' ARFK—AIE Asat31December 2004, a director of the Company had interests

EHUTAKRENEFP AL

=

Director

HIgEsE
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi
HEgELE

Mr. Chin Ying Hoi

HIgEsE
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi
HEgELE
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi
HIgEsE
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi

HIEgEsE
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi
LUy e
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi
gL sE

Mr. Chin Ying Hoi

gL sE
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi

HEgEsE
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi

EF

Name of customers

BORETBAEERERAR
Haikou Huapu Lide Parking Management Co. Ltd.
BEMNEFHEERERAQA

Guangzhou Electronic Parking
Management Co., Ltd.
BEREEFEZEZARERAA
Weihai TianChuang Electronic System Co., Ltd.
HEREEFHEEBARAA
Yichang Wuhua Electronic Parking Management Co., Ltd.
ITRELTBRAERRERARAA
Beijing Huapu Roadside Parking Facilities Construction
And Management Co., Ltd.
RETEELLERBRAA
Wuhan Parking Operation Management Co., Ltd.
EEBETARDA
Huapu Supermarket Co., Ltd.
MEELEHHEZREBRERAA

in the following customers of the Group:

BRER

Interests held

49%

RZZETNE

+ At BAHBI9%E R
49% interest held was
disposed on 7 July 2004
20%

20%

100%

49%

64%

R-_ZEENEF

“ AT\ BRI#A30%#E &=

Nanning Huapu Zheng Fang Parking
Construction and Management Co., Ltd.

BMNEREFREEEERAA

Zhengzhou Daokang Electronics Parking
Management Co., Ltd.

2EBT (R ERAA

Huapu Supermarket (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.

30% interest held was

disposed on 18 February 2004

20%

64%

BROAEBRBIUASN  RRBINES  RELHEA
THEMRR  EBREEMAEEARFTAD Z
A ERRARED CBREBRARBNZADHA
EFREADBHERTHEE TRNES -
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Other than those disclosed above, none of the directors, their
associates, or any shareholders, which to the knowledge of the
director owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital,
had an interest in the Company’s five largest customers and
five largest suppliers.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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BB S
AEERBEZE_TTNF+_A=1T—HLLFE
ETZEXERBALR S (AIREFEBHAR
% FiA R A Al R &S LW ARRI (T EHR A
BRABRSE) - DENM B HRRME26 -

AT EH
ARRRNERN—HEBT EWHBIES28E5.83001K
FEIEEeRRLRERX] 2HRE -

REREAREZ

RERDMERAA([RE])  HES - BT
BAT (BAIERLEMRA6.3/52MFED) 2T
TWFE+Z A=+ —HEERAFH 13,200,000
BRABEEERREE AR ITEUAINREZF
ARZZEEZFNA+TAAAEEMNA H
3,000,000/% A FF % 2.038 ST REBE A A B B R EE
0.05% T 2 AR # -

ERERE
ARFE2RERBGITMASRE Z [N IER
ZESRESImIRRMIAEZLZES 2B
LEEZBEGESE -

BERZBEENREEFREANFTRETESS
BARREMZEANEZRR BXZEGNE
B AR NEEINBEZ TR - A RARPEE
BERFEETHANE ZEGR=(IBII
HTEFHBEAL RERLENEFZLIA
Ko BERZEECENASEREZE_TTNE+
“A=ZT-RLEZEERMB®RE

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2004, which constitute
connected transactions under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”), are
disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with the
Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules 5.28 to
5.39 of the GEM Listing Rules.

EX-SPONSOR'’S INTEREST

As at 31 December 2004, Oriental Patron Asia Limited (“Oriental
Patron”), its directors, employees or associates (as referred in
note 3 of Rule 6.35 of the GEM Listing Rules) are interested in
13,200,000 shares of the Company and outstanding options
granted on 16 August 2002 at consideration. The holders of the
options are entitled to subscribe for 3,000,000 shares of the
Company of HK$0.05 each at an exercise price of HK$2.03 per
share.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
An Audit Committee was established with written terms of

reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in the
GEM Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
provide supervision over the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors, Mr. Qu
Xiao Guo, Mr. Zhang Xiao Jing and Ms. Tung Fong. The Group’s
audited financial statement for the year ended 31 December
2004 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
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ESTHRFUXRB RS
REENERERR (ERRAERTFLLTR
AN(TRIRAR E AR SR B T 2R KE X
BRKBEFRAIREEREF 2 EHER

B B

EXeR _ZTONFN\AT=ZRZBERXE:
BiTHERIRICESHMEBAR/ARBTEBE
“EENFEFT A=+ BIEFEZIREE - &%
BN BE=FANLBTAEME -

BEXGFMTENEER  ERBEEMT - AR
ARRBERBFARG L REREERX G
BEADBRZBEZRASR

BEEAX
EEEBRARARAT
LI

E

FEItR —EEHRF=A -+ A1H

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest
in a business, which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group, or has any other conflict of interests with the
Group.

AUDITOR

On 13 August 2004, Messrs RSM Nelson Wheeler were appointed
as auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2004 in succession to Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers. There
have been no other changes of auditors in the past three years.

Messrs RSM Nelson Wheeler retire, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Messrs RSM Nelson Wheeler as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By Order of the Board

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
Chin Ying Hoi

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC, 29 March 2005

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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RSM Nelson Wheeler
®omOEX g NG

Certified Public Accountants

BELZEEABRARAA
(RAESHEFMEALZERAA)
2EERX

FZBEME TR EZEREFEC0E 2 M HHMEK -
ZEPHRRIDERELELERN S RAR
8l o

EERNBASEZER
EUEREAT YU EREREAAEELE
- ERERSARRAT Y HEREN &%
PERBEEEHEE  TABBEARSE
S -

AR BEIRBEERCER  UREYH
WRHABUER  UEAMEERERERS - Bit
ZHOARBERNERETCEN - AEBM TSR AR
FHATAEMNEEALE ESAEEAEET -

RRzER
BTXM@EAZHM 2z TEMES ZBRE
SN AZHEERREB GRS AEM 2K
BOERIETER T -

ERRERRNMEN AERBM B REAMHAHK
BMBREZHERZEE  TEEIBEEERNE
M B RREAIEZE ARG MHAE - FIRAZ
SHRRRETEAEARHERE CARER

FELERERLEWREZXFSMUR -
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
JIAN ePAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 32 to 80
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The Company'’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, except that the scope of our work was
limited as explained below.

An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the
Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 £
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FZ BN R B BAZ TIER - UAIS B A%
EMABRANEZEMKBEABEE  UEESRK
DRE BREVEREREFEEERNERRK
o ERAEZHETE o AW - AREEIEE
B ARE2,757,0007T (B BiFR BB &
GEERBRTPESREMBENR—HEHF) 2R
BFHR - AZBMTEKIEERRERHME
ALl ENR B ER - Fit - ANZ AR a8
BB REEE I AMBRER AL T
BRELHETE - FMBBAZHENARBEYE 5%
BN _TENMFE+ A=+ BzBEEFER
HBEZZAILFEZEE -

EEHERR  AEREMTEFHZEHBERE
PRl EMEERERT R - ARBEEER
PMzEZTFEREMERRHKAE CER -

FREECEEREZERTAPRE

EEHERR  RNEHMEZ BRI NTBERERM
H2@QTEBRAFELLEERBUABRE
MIRERS BN - MM B MR M E2()F AT
FHANRE ZPBRRRBEHELERE
MiEs EAMMBRREREESRIHES N
BANRBLEVECSRFEREELLRSRE
XM AU BHRRATBEEEETHE
BB EERELIESRAMNENEELLRS
MERBMEFELAEE -

AREMABREELEERE  AMRE EF
BEBKNRAKBEREEEIREZEETH
AEZEN RS RERMAELREER -
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We planned our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. However, the evidence available to us in relation
to trade payables of approximately RMB2,757,000 included in
trade and other payables of the Group as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet was limited. We have not received
the direct confirmations and have not been provided with other
relevant financial information for the aforesaid payables. As a
result, we are unable to ascertain whether these amounts have
been properly accounted for in the financial statements and are
fairly stated. Any adjustments to the above figure would affect
the net liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2004 and its
results for the year then ended.

In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO THE GOING
CONCERN BASIS

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of
the disclosures made in Note 2(a) to the financial statements
concerning the adoption of the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements. As more fully explained in Note 2(a) to
the financial statements, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the ability of the Group to raise new funds to
finance its current operation and to attain profitable and positive
cash flow operations. The financial statements do not include
any adjustments that would result from a failure to raise new
funds and to attain profitable and positive cash flow operations
by the Group.

We consider that appropriate disclosures have been made but
the inherent uncertainties surrounding the circumstances under
which the Group might successfully continue to adopt the going
concern basis are so extreme that we have disclaimed our
opinion.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Due to the significance of the fundamental uncertainty relating
to the going concern basis and the limitation on our work in
relation to trade payables of approximately RMB2,757,000, we
are unable to form an opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2004 or of the
loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended. In all
other respects, in our opinion the financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In respect alone of the limitation on our work in relation to trade
payables as set out in the basis of opinion section of this report,
we have not obtained all the information and explanations we
considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 29 March 2005
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004
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Turnover

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other revenue
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Operating loss
Finance costs, net

Loss before taxation

Taxation

Loss attributable to
shareholders

Dividend

Basic loss per share

Diluted loss per share

—EETNEF —EE=F
2004 2003
Bt AR%TT ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
4 8,173 3,407
(3,996) (665)
4,177 2,742
4 3,337 1,436
(1,083) (1,669)
(41,417) (52,648)
5 (34,986) (50,139)
6 (615) (989)
(35,601) (51,128)
7 - _
8 (35,601) (51,128)
9 - _
10 (RMB0.09) (RMBO.13)
10 N/A N/A

financial statements.

The notes on pages 37 to 80 form an integral part of these

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 DECEMBER 2004

—EENEF —EE=F
2004 2003
B & AR¥FT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE Non-current asset
B 7 & E Fixed assets 12 8,130 38,906
REBEE Current assets
BE Inventories 14 412 5
B 5 N H b JE WK Trade and other receivables 15 5,981 4,593
& 5 B8 Bk 1 &) Due from related companies 26 20 391
Himeh & E Other current assets 16 238 238
WITHEBRRES Bank and cash balances 6,428 17,021
13,079 22,248
B mBEE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 & H A FER K Trade and other payables 17 17,466 22,224
J& 1< BA Bk 2 &) Due to related companies 26 509 -
JE T B SRR A A Due to the ultimate holding
company 26 1,099 818
8 45 BR % Deposits from customers 1,028 1,406
Ak fE 5 Convertible notes 18 5,306 10,611
25,408 35,059
REBEEFS Net current liabilities (12,329) (12,811)
BEERRBER Total assets less current
liabilities (4,199) 26,095
EERR : Financed by:
(R Share capital 21 21,208 21,208
& Reserves 22 (30,712) 4,887
BEREH Capital deficiency/
P 3R 1 % Shareholders’ funds (9,504) 26,095
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
R —fEE Due to a director 19 5,305 -
(4,199) 26,095
EEepN _ETRE=-A -+ NBH#E Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2005
HEE BEE
Chin Ying Hoi Yang Guo Wei
BF g
Director Director

RI7TEZES0B Z M IEHREM T ALAIKREZMN—  The notes on pages 37 to 80 form an integral part of these
B - financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 DECEMBER 2004

—EENEF —ET=F
2004 2003
i3 AR%TT ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEREBEE Non-current assets
RFRRIZEE Investments in subsidiaries 13 4,992 39,707
REBEE Current assets
2 5 & H e R Trade and other receivables 15 139 318
RITEHRNES Bank and cash balance 14 —
153 318
B RBAaE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 & H A FER K Trade and other payables 17 4,038 3,319
gk ES Convertible notes 18 5,306 10,611
9,344 13,930
RBEEEE Net current liabilities (9,191) (13,612
BEEBRRBAE Total assets less current
liabilities (4,199) 26,095
E&RR : Financed by:
[i& 7 Share capital 21 21,208 21,208
& Reserves 22 (30,712) 4,887
BAREH Capital deficiency/
e Shareholders’ funds (9,504) 26,095
FkRBAE Non-current liabilities
R —fEE Due to a director 19 5,305 —
(4,199) 26,095
EEgR_TTERF-AZ-tAHE Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2005
B BEE
Chin Ying Hoi Yang Guo Wei
E E
Director Director

P7TEZES0B 2 M IEHREM T AAIKREMN—  The notes on pages 37 to 80 form an integral part of these
B - financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

—22NMEF —ET=F
2004 2003
it & AREFR ARBTFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—Rz@RER Total equity as at 1 January 26,095 77,224
AREZERR Net gain/(loss) not recognised
ZWa (E18) FE in the profit and loss account
BMEBINTE QA Exchange differences arising
B mk 2 on translation of the financial
X =5 statements of foreign
subsidiaries 22 2 (1)
26,097 77,223
F% 3R FE 15 S 1R Loss attributable to shareholders 22 (35,601) (51,128)
R+ZA=+—H Total equity as
Y X at 31 December (9,504) 26,095

RI7TEZES0B Z M IEHREMTEAAIKHREZMN—  The notes on pages 37 to 80 form an integral part of these
#B

219 o financial statements.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

—EENF —ET=F
2004 2003
i ARB T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REFH2 CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW
Be (R FROM OPERATING
RAE ACTIVITIES 24(a) (10,240) 15,794
EARFE Interest paid (622) (1,105)
KEEB 2 RS Net cash (outflow)/inflow
(Rd) /RN FE from operating activities (10,862) 14,689
RAREESH ZE LM Cash flows from investing activities
BEETEE Purchases of fixed assets (21) (1,661)
“@BAKEZ Decrease/(increase) in time
EMERZ deposits with original maturity
WA, () of more than 3 months 5,300 (5,300)
W B 7 B Interest received 7 116
xE,/(BR)EZAEEE  Net cash generated from/
ZHEeFHE (used in) investing activities 5,286 (6,845)
RARMEESH ZE LM Cash flows from financing activities
FERERERN Repayment of convertible notes (5,305) -
B EER Repayment of short-term
borrowings - (9,306)
JE A — iz 2 5 0 Increase in due to a director 5,305 -
JE T B B4R A & Increase/(decrease) in due to
FIERE I, CRL D) the ultimate holding Company 281 (88)
®E,/ (AR)BLEA/EE 2 Net cash generated from/(used in)
REFHE financing activities 281 (9,394)
RERREEEY DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
BHEZRD EQUIVALENTS (5,295) (1,550)
—HB—HZHRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REEENRE AT 1 JANUARY 11,721 13,272
MW = Effect of foreign exchange
difference 2 (@)
+ZA=+—-8%2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BEeERRESEEYWHE AT 31 DECEMBER 24(b) 6,428 11,721

MITEZB0E Z M B MRME R AI B MK —

The notes on pages 37 to 80 form an integral part of these

i o financial statements.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
#? X B B R #£ 8 R 24 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—RER
ARARRREREHREARARHERET
M BZH#BERNDBRAR - EFABK
F-BRAETUMNRERFFEEENTK
HRERG(EELSBER cAREEE UK
HHEBXERAMREREH -

ENBRRNERER

(a) REBEZZTWF+A=+—HLF
B AEBHBERFEBARE
35,601,0007C * WRZZFEZTWF+=AH
StT—HZRBABRFERARE
12,329,0007C - EHFBHEKR_ZZERH
FH AT AT 8 (EF H A K% 5,306,000
(I 18) « Zoh - REBRZ-ZZE
mE= A%E] T LA R 28,200,0007T
FIBUWEE — AR 70%EZS S 0 %
FIEA A (T 7E25a) -

BEFELABR - NRRAEZTERMN
TRE - MEAFELEEERRARIR
B EREAARESEHE  AEENA
ARBREETENEFAREBE R
FEENARFGENNREREFTKEXR
R EMERSKEREARENEE R
ANRERERN - BN RRFAESR
BEHKEERRENHER - AN &
FNRAFBCERLERYEARKRE -

fHEAEERGAEBARFBELEREL
BER BEESERFHAERASEE
ZEBEZEARRSEEN - RAES
ZEME-—FEBERBEUARBIER
BHEENRBBEIHEIRARBDEENE

&~

(b) REEREBEELKAERERE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its subsidiaries
were engaged in the development and operation of a back
and electronic receipt/payment and data recording and
processing software system (“Jian ePayment System”) and
manufacturing and distribution of the associated commercial
applications.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) The Group incurred a significant loss of
RMB35,601,000 for the year ended 31 December 2004,
and as at 31 December 2004 had net current liabilities
of RMB12,329,000 including convertible notes payable
of RMB5,306,000 which is due for payment in 2005
(Note 18). In addition, the Group entered into an
agreement in March 2004 to acquire 70% equity
interest in a company at a consideration of
RMB28,200,000 which will be due for settlement (Note
25a).

Notwithstanding the above situation, the directors have
prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis as the directors are confident that the electronic
payment business of the Group in the public
transportation and retails store industries in the PRC
will improve and provide contributions to the Group’s
profitability and cash flows and as a result will improve
the operating results and cash flow position of the
Group in the future. Moreover, the directors expect
that new funds will be raised in the near future to
finance the Group’s current operation. Accordingly, the
directors have prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to restate the values of assets to their

recoverable amounts, to provide for any further

liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and

liabilities, respectively.

(b) The financial statements are prepared under the
historical cost convention.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
#2 X B B R #£ 8 R 24 7
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3. FEEFHEE

KRB THIRBEE

ARETRAURB B G

MRgRfmz et RERE

i

(a)

—
=

(ii)

T

i

5 9

>ﬂ

#HERA
FERAEBRARANRZTAT
BET-_A=1t—HILZzKAE -

N

P A RIEAR B HE RS FEERE
BB R BRENMEK
REBRE  ZEIBWBREFE

REZHKE  AEEZTEEH L
BRZEREEZ AT

RESEARREZEARS R
BHRONEFAMKRE KIEE -

HEFRAIZKREXBEELE
PIBZWAREEREZLAE
EFECER  ERZALRE
HRAEBRERAXHERARZEM
ABHEHELERE  AEEM
BRERZEE -

PEBRRERESEINABREEFA
RIZIREEEREEFETHE
ZHER o

EARBZEERERA BT
RNAZRE KA EH R R EE
BEBAR - AREHTFRAZ
EERe W R ERRE AR

ISR E

LNEET 2R G  BERFHE
HrEXRFHE - RNEE B AN
FERNEREERBEREH
BrEXRFHE HBUEELEZER
BEHTAREE -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong
and with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

(a) Group accounting

(i)

(ii)

Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the
Company, directly or indirectly, controls more than
one half of the voting power; has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies; to
appoint or remove the majority of the members of
the board of directors; or to cast majority of votes
at the meetings of the board of directors.

All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the proceeds
of the sale and the Group's share of its net assets
together with any unamortised goodwill or
negative goodwill or goodwill/negative goodwill
taken to reserves and which was not previously
charged or recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net
assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising
in these cases are dealt with in the profit and
loss account.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEEHRE ()
(a) EEEH (1)
(i) SEBE ()

(b)

317

(i)

(ii)

(i)

FRENMINEBRZEERBR
BREE R ERFE  MBxR
RARTFHERFE - HHESE
CERBEFRFEREDAR -

BE
BE
BERRBRABE N EEE S
BEAMEETRAZCFEEL
BE -

ARBEEZRBERES AER
BE  YNEREREMGRAE
RERI0FHE - mEURLR
RETHHE N R REINR - F—
MBRFEEAEEHHBEHRME
WHRETES -

1 9t K B AR A
MAKAEBEERIERBAX
o BREMERRETEMRBKM
ZATHERBREETRZEM * M
MBERGE) - AR FHR -
KA gD &K A%EE
WA ABFERLABRE
mZ R RARACHERS R
RAERSELEE - LIAER
ERTERBSF 2 HEEE - AR
R 5 48 BE A B R sk FERR 2 IR A o
TR A LRI 2 B R A%
ERERERAXE -BEARRX
HZABERAT G TR HREH®
RBEE °

RBIE=BEMF+=A=+—
BEE - BRERAGAEN
BRTHRRAEE -

L& EFENRE
mBEPRBERHIRE - BB
BEZIREE OFHEREE
WomZR WEEE -

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Group accounting (Continued)

(ii)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The balance sheet of subsidiaries expressed in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date whilst
the profit and loss items are translated at an
average rate. Exchange differences are dealt with
as a movement in reserves.

(b) Intangibles

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at
the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions is included in intangible
assets and is amortised using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life of 10 years.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation
method are reviewed annually at each financial
year end.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects relating to the
design and testing of new or improved products
are recognised as an intangible asset where the
technical feasibility and intention of completing
the product under development has been
demonstrated and the resources are available to
do so, costs are identifiable and there is an ability
to sell or use the asset that will generate probable
future economic benefits. Such development costs
are recognised as an asset and amortised on a
straight-line basis over a period of not more than
5 years to reflect the pattern in which the related
economic benefits are recognised. Development
costs that do not meet the above criteria are
expensed as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

During the year ended 31 December 2004, no
development costs were capitalised as they did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation.

Impairment of intangible assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of any intangible asset is
assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount.

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Fixed assets
Fixed assets comprising leasehold improvements,
machinery and office equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

(i)  Depreciation
Fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to
write off their cost less accumulated impairment
losses, after taking into account of the estimated

ERFERFEMAT : residual values of each asset over its estimated
useful life on a straight-line basis. The principal
residual value and annual depreciation rates are
as follows:

BER FIEXR
Annual

Residual depreciation
value rate

HEMELRE Leasehold improvements - 20%

MR R Machinery 0%-5% 14% — 20%

FNE L Office equipment 0%-10% 14% — 19%

(i) JHE (i) Impairment

HEEBFEER  BERKEARI
RIONRARESNERMRIZERE
BETEEAANEES SREMN
R-MBEPRBRZEEELR
BAE - RIEEEATKEEER &
FEREE I T #%5 B E B AR
HEERZHEAKEEER- - 1tF
HEBREBRaRAK  BERE
REEREESE - MBEES
BTHBEZEECEMAS 1t
THEBAEFERGRE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external sources of information are considered to
assess whether there is any indication that assets
included under fixed assets are impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the profit and loss account
except where the asset is carried at valuation and
the impairment loss does not exceed the
revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which
case it is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FESHEBE (&) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(dy BUSHEBI& (d) Government grants

EAAEEEARES AN ERAMHY
M GRS ESHBER - B
BRARTEDE - BERAZHBIET)
TEREREMAE cEREERRER
@R R -

FRABERTEE BB %
Bl & B 2 e A £ B F HAE AT
AFRBEEFRERWAL T AR
BE o

A government grant is recognised when there is a
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching with it and that the grant will
be received. Grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in the profit and loss account over the
period necessary to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchases of fixed
assets are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited to the profit and loss account
on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
fixed assets.

(e) BEHE (e) Operating leases
KEHERERBEEZARRERE Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
ErREBEARRBZEE - HEHRE of ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
ENBREHERRKRZ IR EES are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made
% RHEEBMANESRETEEEEREP under operating leases net of any incentives received
8§ o from the leasing company are charged to the profit

and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

() 78 (f) Inventories
FEBRERKmRER M - REAER Inventories comprise stocks and work in progress and
ERFEZECBREEAR - KAE are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
AR RRTE - UBERME B Cost, calculated on the first-in, first-out basis,
BAIRMALELTRZ 2 EIEH comprises materials, direct labour and an appropriate
7 o PJEBFENIRBFHEMERE proportion of all production overhead expenditure. Net
HERESHEHEHBERTE o realisable value is determined on the basis of

anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling
expenses.

(9) FEWIRFE (9) Accounts receivable
REERREFZEBBIRPD - HREE Provision is made against accounts receivable to the
H HEEABRAMNKRZEUIRSE extent they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts
HEREHEzs EES - receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of such

provision.

(hy BEeRELEEY (h) Cash and cash equivalents

RekReFEMERRALEEERER
NI - ERESRERT  ReELBEL
EEVeRBEERE  RITBAFN
“EARIBMZASRERRITES °

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance
sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with a maturity of three months or less
from date of investment and bank overdrafts.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
#2 X B B R #£ 8 R 24 7
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EEEF
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NESHE ([RESFE]) - &
BEHEABRTEREENEE - /A
BUXHEAEE - BRETEEH
BE  AKRBEFEKLZ TR
REAAASEMATEBET
BMEAEERRE -

SEZHEFARNEFEBBANER
mRXH o

(i) HzmFEFF
AEBMEERREERDBER
o BREZSBRERKLEBH
BmemBERLYIEZERT
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K UWHEEEBERPIIEESR
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BNk EARSKARBEARK
(BE) RRHEE -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

)]

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group

expects a provision to be

reimbursed, the

reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but

only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
(the “MPF Scheme”),
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in

Scheme a defined

Mainland China make contributions to a state-
sponsored defined contribution scheme for the
Group’s local staff on a monthly basis pursuant to
laws and regulations in The People's Republic of
China (the “PRC”) to a government agency.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed as
incurred.

Equity compensation benefits

Share options are granted to directors and to
employees. If the options are granted at the
market price of the shares on the date of the
grant and are exercisable at that price, no
compensation cost is recognised. If the options
are granted at a discount on the market price,
the discount is recognised in the profit and loss
account as a compensation cost and recognised
in the balance sheet as an increase to equity.
When the options are exercised, the proceeds
received net of any transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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FEEHBE(A)
(k) EEFEH

()

(m)

ERFERERABEEINEERRB LM
AEECMHENHTRE ZEEEME 22
EREF28EE - EEMSHERE
FEARERMABELERMIMRE

=

E e

BT IAE E I A BE S R R B AR TR
A A Bz R T = K MR -

BREFSHDORMB LR - BE QAR
RELEREREMEE  BREA
VARSI 2 2 Bl - BRI BEAER TR
RIRA & B D AIERSN o

RREE
HARERATHENEFM AR
ZEE MWEREEFTRR —FTHERE
HEenBETEER  MEEL TR
ERBELRKEMHELER - AR
BNAERRDEENEMFSIRZAA
B  EARARITTRHERLHE
B RETSEREAELEEMKRA
N

FRBETERER  BESEREME
hIRE - REBRERZ AN EE
BRI ERERE - L EFRBERRE
NREE e

EL L

() HEEE - BHERRAELOK
A
WEEE B REREA K
AREMERAREES  EH
BRETRERTTRE  FE
WEOR DB R IR
I LA K B B 7 K TS TR
®a -
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

0

(m)

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the accounts. Taxation rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date are
used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the accounts. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Revenue recognition
(i) Sales of hardware,
integration

software and systems

Revenue from sales of hardware, software and
systems integration is recognised when delivery
and acceptance have occurred, the fee is fixed
and determinable, persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, collection of the receivable
is probable and no significant post-delivery
obligations remain.
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3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(i) Transaction levies
Transaction levies are recognised on an accrual
basis based on certain percentages of revenue
generated from the operations of Jian ePayment
System as individually determined between the
Company and the customers.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
on a time proportion basis on the principal
amounts outstanding and at the rates applicable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and
loss account in the year in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting the Group has determined that geographical
segment be presented as the primary reporting format.
The Group operates in one business segment.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets consist primarily of fixed assets,
inventories, receivables and operating cash. Segment
liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude
items such as taxation and certain corporate
borrowings. Capital expenditure comprises additions
to intangible assets and fixed assets.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the areas in which the customer is

located. Total assets and capital expenditure are where
the assets are located.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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EXE KERIBER

(a)

4. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

ey Hilks (@) Turnover and other revenue
REBRAREEHNLEBNT ¢ Revenues recognised during the year are as follows:
—EENE —ZTT=F
2004 2003
AR¥FT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
mER Turnover
5 & R 1 R B A Sales of hardware and software 6,694 1,300
EEWA Transaction levies 1,479 2,107
8,173 3,407
Ha iz Other revenue
HEZELTEERRIA Profit on sales of smart cards 223 -
AL A Subsidy income
—EERERE (B 20) - Value added tax (“VAT")
refund (Note (i)) 2,950 1,416
Hh Others 164 20
3,337 1,436
U = Total revenues 11,510 4,843

HREMNEERREFRERBAERR
A(TEERREDETBENHEELAR
RHYPORER - ZBERTTENEHEE
WA17% (BHER) - EEERMY
B FRmERAX N EREERS
FEHUIEER S TIAEM - LUt RE#EE
RN R AT FIZED -

BERRBREARE_ZSTTFE A=
+ = B % 11 19 B B [2000]28 25%% X 41
T RTHRHECEERRE  HHIFE
BT EE 2 S E MBI ET
BBRASURN DB TIRE - HEZ
EENF+-A=+—HIEFE &&
ERSZEHLERBEENARE
2,950,000t (ZEZET=F : AR
1,416,0007T) + W B ZiREW R A
B AT AGREBREESP -

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
# X B B R #

A R 2 A

(i)

Zhengzhou Jian-O’Yuan ITS Systems Co. Ltd. (“Jian-
O’Yuan”) is subject to output VAT on its sales in PRC,
which is levied at the general rate of 17% on the gross
selling price upon sales of goods. Input VAT paid on
purchases of raw materials, work in progress and other
assets would be used to offset the output VAT payable
on sales to determine the net VAT prepayment or VAT
payable.

Pursuant to Cai Shui [2000] No. 25 issued by the State
Tax Bureau on 22 June 2000, software enterprises are
entitled to a preferential tax treatment and any actual
VAT paid related to the sales of self-developed and
produced software exceeding 3% of the revenue from
the sales of software will be refunded. For the year
ended 31 December 2004, the Group obtained a refund
amounted to RMB2,950,000 (2003: RMB1,416,000)
which was recognised as subsidy income in the
consolidated profit and loss account.
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“E‘?f W O® R M O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, EER KWBRIPBEM (B) 4. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) BMEPERZEXEINMT (b) Turnover analysed by categories of customers are as
follows:

—EEMNE —TT=F

2004 2003

ARBETRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

B AR ZHERA Sales to related companies
(Bt e 26(b)(i) (Note 26(b)(i)) 4,025 585
HELEEXSEERMHREY Sales to unrelated parties
FERREE R ] 2 5 B WA financed by Jian Enterprise
(K #26(d)) Group* (Note 26(d)) - 1,330
HEIE=FZHEERA Sales of independent third
parties 4,148 1,492
8,173 3,407
* BEEEXSEERAPRELEERTR *  The Jian Enterprise Group represents a group of
EUITHREEEAREZEERAR (TR companies ultimately owned by Mr. Chin Ying Hoi and
FEASE RESEIERAR) - 85518 Ms. Ya Zhen Quan (excluding the Group and its ultimate
EERTIREZ T BARAREER holding company), Mr. Chin Ying Hoi and Ms. Ya Zhen
NAZ KRR (R E26(d) - Quan are the shareholders of the ultimate holding

company of the Company (see Note 26(d)).

(c) AEBEH (c) Segment information
REBETEIREBRNLE - EHEEE The Group conducts its business within one business
FEFEEEERASREE  HEMRE segment — the development and operation of Jian
B R o ePayment System and manufacturing and distribution

of the associated commercial applications in the PRC.

AEEMNEBIETCUTREAMER The Group’s businesses operate in five main
b geographical areas:

EEE Southern China

b i = Northern China

i @ Central China

EHMZ Eastern China

Rkt @ North-eastern China

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 & 3 Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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4.

DEWER (B)

EXE KERIBER (B) 4.

WEANBZEHRAAEBLIERRER -

B % ] &k W &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Segment information (Continued)

There are minimal sales between the geographical

segments.
ERBE ELHE ETHE ERHE RLHE
North-
Southern  Northern Central Eastern eastern
China China China China China Group
“EEMEF -ZIME —ZEIMF -TIMEF —ZEIMEF -SEMFE
2004 2004 2004 2004 2004 2004
ARBFL AREFR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
=3 Turnover 2,059 139 3,481 2 2,470 8,173
NHEE Segment results 1,466 89 2,085 23 514 4177
RAEKA Unallocated costs (39,163)
LEFE Operating loss (34,986)
HBER Finance costs, net (615)
BREAER Loss before taxation (35,601)
Ha Taxation -
REEEER Loss attributable
to shareholders (35,601)
NHEE Segment assets - 3,694 17,515 - - 21,209
RAREE Unallocated assets -
BEE Total assets 21,209
NHEE Segment liabilities - 610 30,103 - - 30,713
RAEERE Unallocated liabilities -
EERE Total liabilities 30,713
ARMERT Capital expenditure - - 21 - - 21
il Depreciation - 3,226 6,386 - - 9,612
BETEEREER Impairment loss of
fixed assets - 7,404 13,031 - - 20,435
BEEH Amortisation of goodwil - - - - - -
HERE Impairment of goodwill - - - - - -

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
2 Z B B 2 &£ 8 B A 7
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“E‘?f W O® R M O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, EER KWBRIPBEM (B) 4. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(C) aB&ER (&) (c) Segment information (Continued)
eI B EAREBIEEELY - There are minimal sales between the geographical
segments.

EfmE  EhuR EFhHE O ERME RHE £8

North-

Southern  Northem Central Eastern eastern
China China China China China Group
“Z%-F -FF-F -—FF-F -—FTFT-F —FTE-F _FT=F
2003 2003 2003 2003 2003 2003
ARETT ARETT ARETRT AREFT AREFT ARETTL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

EX8 Tumnover 476 43 2,714 19 155 3,407
NHEE Segment results 404 (50) 2,247 1 140 2,742
RABKA Unallocated costs (52,881)
LEFE Operating loss (50,139)
HBER FE Finance costs, net (989)
BREAER Loss before taxation (51,128)
"a Taxation _
RREGES Loss attributable to

shareholders (51,128)
NHEE Segment assets - 21,607 30,964 - - 52,571
KOEEE Unallocated assets 8,583
BEE Total assets 61,154
AHEE Segment liabilities - 175 19,235 - - 19,410
*HEAE Unallocated liabilities 15,649
BEE Total liabilities 35,059
ARMERT Capital expenditure - - 1,661 - - 1,661
il Depreciation - 5,166 4,281 - - 9,447
BETEEREER Impair ment loss of

fixed assets - 7,760 3,014 - - 10,774
HERH Amortisation of goodwill - - 209 - - 209
HERE Impairment of goodwill - - 1,359 - - 1,359
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5.

M OB ® k M &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS “

KEBE 5. OPERATING LOSS
E BB (GEA) TFER - Operating loss is stated after charging/(crediting) the
following:
—EENE —ZTT=F
2004 2003
AR®FrT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERE+ D Reversal of provision for
inventories (1,812 -
BE&EENE (Mit12) Depreciation of fixed assets
(Note 12) 9,612 9,447
BEEERE (Fat12) Impairment of fixed assets (Note 12) 20,435 10,774
7 5 Amortisation of goodwill - 209
P RE Impairment of goodwill - 1,359
ZIRER Provision for doubtful debts 2,413 8,394
FE#EE Provision for inventories - 3,739
BETINA(BREESEES) Staff costs including directors’
(Btat11) emoluments (Note 11)
I& Salaries and wages 3,809 8,503
RIREHEIZMTIE Contributions to retirement
(Kt &20 ) schemes (Note 20) 575 473
FEKA Cost of inventories 3,920 665
KEME Operating lease rental 1,499 2,720
% BT B & Auditors’ remuneration 477 1,242
T 78 I A B8 AR Research and development costs 779 3,345
BRER FH 6. FINANCE COSTS, NET
—EENE —TT=F
2004 2003
AR®FrT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEANREEE - Wholly repayable within five years:
RITERZFEER Interest expenses on bank
borrowings - 149
HERZFEER Interest expenses on other
borrowings - 319
AEREFCNEER Interest expenses on
convertible notes 622 637
622 1,105
o FLE A Less: Interest income ) (116)
615 989

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
¥ w = B % &£ &8 B 2 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥ #§
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“E‘?f W O® R M O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR
AEBBERAARNELE I HGREE SR
BEELIMBRAREREEBMME
Moo

—TEMEEAKEYEELALRNAES
B RERZEERBEZEIEMEN
28N REB|RZ = ERVEEER ZAE
FHiREER (Z2T=F &)

AEBZFRA—ELERERR —ANANEF
MAZ+TABETEEMRINLEERE
oA FERRR _TT—F L ARFEI
BRECEBBEL  BRETPEARKANE
SNEARE R E RN ERAERA - RS
ARENEEUQR  FERRFSE (A%
FMEEEZEMERFNBRES - R =
TENF  FLRRUEERECEMESHE
e

REELEBMRARARARIRELE R
MEBERAAR-_FENF+-_A=1+—H
LHEREYEELGRENZET AR ZET
RIS BF - MU BTG ER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥

TAXATION

The companies comprising the Group are subject to income
taxes on an entity basis on income arising in or derived
from the tax jurisdiction in which they operate.

No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands or Hong Kong has been provided for as the
Group has no assessable profit arising in or derived from
those jurisdictions for the year ended 31 December 2004
(20083: Nil).

The Group’s subsidiary, Jian-O’Yuan, was incorporated in
the PRC as a privately owned limited liability company on
26 April 1999. In July 2001, Jian-O’Yuan obtained the tax
registration as an enterprise with foreign investment.
Pursuant to the PRC laws of Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign
Enterprises, as a manufacturing enterprise with foreign
investment, Jian-O’Yuan is entitled to full exemption from
EIT for two years and a 50% reduction in the next three
years. In year 2004, no EIT provision was provided for Jian-
O’Yuan.

No EIT provision was required for the other subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC, Beijing Jian ePayment Science
and Technology Co. Ltd. and Wuhan Jian ePayment Science
and Technology Co. Ltd. as they have no assessable profit
for the year ended 31 December 2004.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
¥ ¥ E B R K& 8 R A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35,601,000 (ZZEZE=F : AR#

7. BiE (&) 7. TAXATION (Continued)
REBNEZZBRWABUAHRE - RA As the Group’s major operation and income were located
FEBARASERFREETE N E A3 ° in the PRC, the applicable tax rate to the Group was the
NEARERFTE s HERIREHBELHE PRC statutory tax rate of 33% during the year. Reconciliation
LU between tax expense and accounting loss at applicable

tax rate is as follows:
—EENE —TT=F
2004 2003
ARBFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KR AIE B Loss before taxation (35,601) (51,128)
R BEEER E33%5E Calculated at the PRC statutory
tax rate of 33% (11,748) (16,872)
MExRFE Effect of different tax rate 865 2,533
RkE=SHyE Effect of tax preferential period (116) -
TEMBHI o HMETE Expenses not deductible
for taxation purpose 183 -
AERELEHIBEE Unrecognised deferred tax assets 10,816 14,339
RIBZENF+_A=+T—BZARBHEERLT The details of unprovided deferred taxation as at 31
BB RN F23 - December 2004 were stated in Note 23.

8. BRREMLEE 8. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
EARRABBHRE EREORRIEGEEBE The loss attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the
AR #35,599,0007L (ZEZT=5F: FEA accounts of the Company to the extent of a loss of
R #15,708,0007T) ° RMB35,599,000 (2003: RMB15,708,000).

9. RE 9. DIVIDEND
REEXAFERRT REMRERE (ZF No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company
T=F @) o during the year (2003: Nil).

10. BREE 10. LOSS PER SHARE
BREXEERBERREGEEARY The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the

Group’s loss attributable to shareholders of RMB35,601,000

51,128,0007t) M A A B, %47 & 48 A h0 & (2003: RMB51,128,000) and on the weighted average of
9 400,000,000 (= 2% = &F : 400,000,000 (2003: 400,000,000) ordinary shares in issue

400,000,0000%) 5+ & -

RRARA N EREN A RRES ZITEE
BRARFABRNER THEREENTHN
B AUARBAARBIH-_FTE=FR_F
TNEZEBREERN -

during the year.

No diluted earnings per share for 2003 and 2004 is
presented because the exercise prices of the Company’s
options and convertible notes were higher than the average
market prices of the Company’s shares for the year.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
#2 X B B R #£ 8 R 24 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. EEREREBAEMS
FRARARMEZIHZMEBBNOT :

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors
of the Company during the year are as follows:

—gemE —FE=F
2004 2003
ARBFL ARMTTE
RMB’000 RMB’000

A
A

H it B &
BEAXwE BERRM -
AR - H A )RR
REYH &

RRER

T EHEBEABYIENTES I
ZHIEARBEA59,000C (ZEZE=F : AR
#120,0007T) °

RHEHZE_ZTWNF+_A=+—HIEFE "
HERBEARTD _ZT—F+— AT NLARK
Mz BB (RMTE210) MERRH
BAE -

XNFEEZHMEARNNT

Fees 280 120
Other emoluments:
Basic salaries, housing
allowances, share options,
other allowances and
benefits in kind 1,208 1,496
Contributions to pensions
schemes for directors 52 74

1,540 1,690

Directors’ fee disclosed above include RMB159,000 (2003:
RMB120,000) paid to independent non-executive directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2004, no options were
granted to the directors under the Executive Share Option
Scheme adopted by the Company on 19 November 2001
(see Note 21(b)).

The emoluments of the directors fell within the following
bands:

B & 48 5l Emolument bands
E£8A
Number of directors
—EENE —TT=F
2004 2003
B B
HK$ HK$
WITE=R Executive directors
Tz AR®1,061,0007T RMBO0-RMB1,061,000
(¥ & 1,000,000 7 JT) (equivalent to HK$1,000,000) 5 5
ERITES Non-executive directors
Tz ARM1,061,0007T RMBO0-RMB1,061,000
(¥ & 1,000,000 7 JT) (equivalent to HK$1,000,000) 3 2

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. EEREREBAEME (&)

BHE_ZENF+_A=+T—HERFEAN
HOTESEDNNHE RN ABARKE
672,000 (ZZEZ =% : AR¥ 663,000
JL) - AR®234,000 (ZZEZ=F : AR
#234,0007T) - AR #358,0007T (ZEZE =
F : AR®350,0007T) - AR#25,0007TC
—EE=F: AR¥115,000T) + AR
91,0007 (Z 22 =F : @) : —uEHTE
EHBEH R AARE72,000T (ZEE=
F : AR#¥60,0007T) @ AR 72,0005t (=
TZT=F : AR¥60,000) K& A R 16,000
T(ZZEE=F: &) -

BE-ZT-FT-ATNBR-FTENMF
NAZTNBRATESRIFRTEZTEAR

ARANRBHE 2RESKAERESSE
FRBEEZHEIAE  MEMEXEARS
HERARBERBAKE ZELERERRE -

BMEBEEZRUWBE_TT=FR_TTNF
T-A=T—"HLMEZTFZHME -

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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11.

M OB ® k M &

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

The five executive directors received individual emoluments
for the year ended 31 December 2004 of approximately
RMB672,000 (2003: RMB663,000), RMB234,000 (2003:
RMB234,000), RMB358,000 (2003: RMB350,000),
RMB25,000 (2003: RMB115,000) and RMB91,000 (2003: Nil)
respectively and the three non-executive directors received
individual emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2004 of approximately RMB72,000 (2003: RMB60,000),
RMB72,000 (2003: RMB60,000) and RMB 16,000 (2003: Nil)
respectively.

Pursuant to service contracts entered between the executive
and non-executive directors and the Company dated 19
November 2001 and 28 September 2004, the director
together will be entitled to a fixed salary or fees which will
be subject to review by the Board of Directors on a yearly
basis and any further performance related bonus shall be
determined by the Company having taken into consideration
the operating results of the Group.

No directors waived or agreed to waive any of their
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2004 and 20083.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M. EEREREBAEME (&) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

AEEEEAREGEaFMATRE=4 The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
(ZZZ=F =K)EF - AleedR L

X - EmE (Z2T=F : BA) &=

the Group for the year include three (2003: three) directors
whose emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented

FATZMES AT - above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2003:
two) individuals during the year are as follows:
—EENE —ZTT=F
2004 2003
AREFRT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
H th 5 B Other emoluments:
EXEe  BERRY - Basic salaries, housing allowances,
REARHE - HMhRA K share options, other allowances
EMH &= and benefits in kind 338 721
RKAEF Contributions to pensions schemes 12 16
350 737

BEFMEAALTZMEARMT ;

The emoluments of the five highest individuals fell within
the following bands:

AH
Number of individuals
—EENE —TZ=F
2004 2003
ARBFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
<485 : Emoluments bands:
TZE AR 1,061,0007T RMB0-RMB1,061,000 (equivalent
(¥ & 1,000,000 7 JT) to HK$1,000,000) 5 5
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Jian ePayment Systems Limited

¥ & B8 B 2 &

F R 2 7



B % ] &k W &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. BEEE 12. FIXED ASSETS
%8
Group
HEMXEE BRRE WARE BE
Leasehold Office
improvements Machinery  equipment Total

ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BAE : Cost:
—ZEME—F—H At 1 January 2004 92 58,542 1,141 59,775
NE Additions - 13 8 21
i Reclassification to

inventories - (750) - (750)
—EEWNE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2004 92 57,805 1,149 59,046
B EREE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment:
—ZEME—F—H At 1 January 2004 92 20,354 423 20,869
rEEHE Charge for the year - 9,409 203 9,612
B X Impairment charge - 20,435 - 20,435
—EEWNE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2004 92 50,198 626 50,916
REFE: Net book value:
—ZEME+-F=+—H At 31 December 2004 - 7,607 523 8,130
—EE=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2003 - 38,188 718 38,906

13. RFLDFZKRE 13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
YN
Company
—EENE —ZTT=
2004 2003

ARETRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

RFRRIZEEKRA Investments in subsidiaries
(K 7t(a)) at cost (Note (a)) 24,208 24,208
fEU TR A (B atb)) Amounts due from subsidiaries
(Note (b)) 25,371 26,568
49,579 50,776
BERE Impairment of investments (44,587) (11,069)
4,992 39,707

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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E,ﬂ?f W O® R M O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. RFLDFZRE ()

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) BRE (a) Investment
RZZBZME+_A=+—HBZFARF The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December
mE 2004:
RIBER TEXE i/ LN 3
8 NEfE KRS REEH BRTEX REBI L
Place of
incorporation/ Date of Principal Particulars of
establishment and incorporation/  activities and registered/
Name kind of legal entity establishment  place of operation issued capital Interest held
(B &) E# GF:
(Note (i) Directly Indirectly
Systematic Technology RBEX Z2E%E RERR SlREER  100% -
Group Limited He BREMAR ~NAEZt+H HE BRIEL
([ Systematic )
Systematic Technology British Virgin Islands, 27 June 2000 Investment holding 5 ordinary 100% -
Group Limited limited liability in Hong Kong shares of
(“Systematic”) company USD1 each
ELRR (W) PE “MAKE ELRAZR 2,950,000% ¢ - 100%
BEREERA mAZTXA MR EEEN
REBERER
MRERER
G
Jian-O"Yuan (Note (i) PRC, limited liability 26 April 1999 Development and USD2,950,000 - 100%
company operation of Jian
ePayment System
and manufacturing
and distribution
of the associated
commercial
applications
in PRC
HEZLRAMK PE it 3 o3 ELRRABNER 846,000 T - 100%
BERAA BEREERA NAZ+H e
(THEZE])
(i & i)
Wuhan Jian ePayment PRC, limited liability 20 August 2002 Operation of Jian USD846,000 - 100%
Science and Technology company ePayment System
Co. Ltd. ("Wuhan Jian in PRC

ePayment”) (Note (iii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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M OB ® k M &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. RTRARAZRE (&) 13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) BE (&) (a) Investment (Continued)
RIBER TEEH i/ LNG) 3
8 NEfE KRS REER BRTEX REBI L
Place of
incorporation/ Date of Principal Particulars of
establishment and incorporation/  activities and registered/
Name kind of legal entity establishment  place of operation issued capital Interest held
(B &) E# GF:
(Note (i) Directly Indirectly
HTRELERHUR PE it 3 ol ELRREABNER 150,000% T - 100%
BRAA BREARAR RAZTZH hE
(MEREE)"
(i i)
Beijing Jian ePayment PRC, limited liability 22 May 2002 Operation of Jian USD150,000 - 100%
Science and Technology company ePayment System
Co. Ltd. ("Beijing Jian in PRC
ePayment”) (Note (iii)
ELER AERAES “ZINE AR i - 100%
(BB BRER EREELH ZA=H R
BRAA
Jian epayment (China) British Virgin Islands, 3 February 2004 Not yet commenced USD1 - 100%

International Holdings
Ltd.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
B R 2 §

2 E 8 B R &

limited liability
company

business
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13. RFLDFZRE ()
RE (&)

(a)

(b)

(i)

(i)

(iif)

RZZBEMF+-R=+—0 AR
AMMEFRAZERERZMHAR -
BERBEREHE 2 IE R _F
TEFE O REZELEZEMAERR
1,500,000 7T 2% 4846,000% 7T ©

EERRAN—NAANFEAZ+X
BEAEAMRIALEERETA
Al o PAFEMA L - 2R EA82%
Bamlt RELREAERAA ([EE
Bl) #6 - ELERHN18%RER
BEVE=FBMNRREFREIMBR
NE(TEBMNBR])EE KR_TET
FUA+NA - BINBRAFHEL R
RE18%MRIERIL RELEXEEE
BRAR (ERELEE])TWNE - %
TRFHERA—BRINEGERE -
BEEZNE LLREBELTEER
Systematick —EE T4+ A+ /\ A
TS 1% » SystematiclA) 2 & &L
R REEEFREELRERNIO%
REEMI%REHELZRHRIEE - 1R
BR-ZZZ-_FRATNAITLHH
T+ SystematiclE AR E LRI A
RAFGEA 2 ELERIR21%KE -
& B 7k & SystematicZ 2 & T2
g .

REELERIRELZRIIN_ZZ
—FNRZ+BRRAAZ+=ZBHEH
BRI FEEREERR © Z
M X A 79 &Systematic2 & 7 A
7 .

BT RBIZHRB/ T B ERETEE
HEH-
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

Investment (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2004, all issued capital of the
subsidiaries of the Company had been paid up.
Following the approval of PRC government authority,
the registered capital of Wuhan Jian ePayment was
revised from USD1,500,000 to USD846,000 in 2004.

Jian-O’Yuan was incorporated in the PRC as a privately
owned limited liability company on 26 April 1999. Upon
incorporation, 82% equity interests of Jian-O'Yuan were
held by Beijing Jian-Tech Co., Ltd. (“Jian-Tech”) and
18% equity interests of Jian-O'Yuan were held by
Zhengzhou-O’Yuan Electronics Technology Limited
(“Zhengzhou-0O’Yuan”), an independent third party. On
18 April 2000, the 18% equity interests of Jian-O'Yuan
held by Zhengzhou-O'Yuan were acquired by Beijing
Jian Enterprises (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Jian
Enterprise”). Jian-O’Yuan was then converted into a
sino-foreign equity joint venture. According to an
agreement between Jian-Tech, Beijing Jian Enterprise
and Systematic dated 18 July 2000, Systematic acquired
99% of the equity interests of Jian-O'Yuan. The
remaining 1% of equity interests was held by Jian-Tech.
According to the agreement dated 18 May 2002, the
1% equity interests of Jian-O’Yuan held by Jian-Tech
was acquired by Systematic. Since then, Jian-O’Yuan
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Systematic.

Wuhan Jian ePayment and Beijing Jian ePayment were
incorporated in the PRC as privately owned limited
liability companies on 20 August 2002 and 22 May 2002
respectively. These two subsidiaries are wholly owned
by Systematic.

(b) The amounts due from subsidiaries were non-interest
bearing and with no fixed repayment terms.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H

14. € 14. INVENTORIES
Group
—EENE T =F
2004 2003
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JR % Raw materials 1,162 959
8 m Work in progress 175 976
UK 1h Finished goods 1,002 1,809
2,339 3,744
FERE Provision for inventories (1,927) (3,739)
412 5
RZZEZEMFE+-_A=+—H REFEEU As at 31 December 2004, no inventories were carried at
AEREEAR(ZZEZT=4F:8&) - net realisable value (2003: Nil).
15. EZRHMERK 15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
56 N
Group Company
—EENE —TT- —EENE —TT-
2004 2003 2004 2003
i ARETFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 EH R Trade receivables (a) 909 272 - -
BAZKERES  Prepayments and deposits  (b) 2,777 3,645 106 -
Hth, & Yk Other receivables (c) 2,295 676 33 318
5,981 4,593 139 318

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. ES REMEWRR (&) 15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(a) ZHEWFZMHEAENN120KE 180 (a) The credit term of the trade receivables of the Group
A2 RZIEBEZE=ZF+-_A=+— ranges from 120 to 180 days. The ageing analysis of
B ZZEKZESRTOT : the trade receivables was as follows:
Group
—EENE —TT=F
2004 2003
AR¥TFRT ARKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
30KAA 0-30 days 157 37
31E60K 31-60 days 59 26
61E 90K 61-90 days 50 31
91E120K 91-120 days - 30
1212180k 121-180 days - 46
181£365K 181-365 days 26 1,323
365K LA £ Over 365 days 12,784 9,173
13,076 10,666
ERER Provision for doubtful accounts (12,167) (10,394)
909 272
(o) BRZERFS (b) Prepayments and deposits
58 N
Group Company
“EENFE _—TT=-F CZTEMF _"TT=F
2004 2003 2004 2003
liFs3 ARBFRT ARETT ARBFRT ARETZ
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEZE Payment of enterprises
P15 M income tax (“EIT”) (i) 2,118 2,621 - -
T FERS 2 B Prepayments to suppliers 425 1,024 - -
Hity Others 234 - 106 -
2,777 3,645 106 -
(i) HEETRREEBWHBEEMF7MA M (i) Before Jian-O’'Yuan obtained the confirmation from the
WEBERERN  BELRLER —_TTTER local tax bureau for the preferential tax treatment as
—ET G EECEFARABMNG stated in Note 7, Jian-O’Yuan was required to place

deposits against the potential EIT liabilities for the years
2000 and 2001. Such deposits for EIT were refunded/
refundable after Jian-O'Yuan obtained the approval of
the preferential tax treatment from the tax bureau in
2001.

EFe o AREFRE_ZT-FELRRDN
BHRBHERER -
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15. ESREMEWRR (&) 15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(c) HftEWR (c) Other receivables
£H NS
Group Company
—EENE —TT- —EENE —TT-
2004 2003 2004 2003

ARBFR ARETT AREFTR ARETT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000

BI#AS Advances to staff 273 97 - -
AEMESF S Deposits for interests of
RES convertible notes - 318 - 318
H A Others 2,022 261 33 -
2,295 676 33 318
16. Htt B EE 16. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
RER SENEMASHEERAFEERT Other current assets at Group level represented the cost of
PREZAREZEBEANEEIERER - smart cards provided by the Group to customers for the
operations of Jian ePayment System as at year end.
17. ESRHMENR 17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
56 NS
Group Company
—EENFE _—ZTT= —EENFE _—ZTT=
2004 2003 2004 2003
fit it ARETFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Z S5 EMF  Trade payables (a) 8,512 8,354 - -
Hi g5  Other payables (b) 8,954 13,870 4,038 3,319
17,466 22,224 4,038 3,319

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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17. ESREMESRK (B) 17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(a) RZZEZWFE+-_A=+—H BFE (a) As at 31 December 2004, the ageing analysis of the

NRZERDTWOT trade payables were as follows:

Group
—EENE —TT=F
2004 2003
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
30KRLAA 0-30 days 254 127
312 60K 31-60 days 95 201
61ZE 90K 61-90 days - 15
91 E 120K 91-120 days 23 461
121E 180K 121-180 days - 380
181E 365K 181-365 days - 190
365K LA £ Over 365 days 8,140 6,980
8,512 8,354
(b) HERNR (b) Other payables
56 A H]
Group Company
“EENFE _—TT=F ZEENF _—TT=

2004 2003 2004 2003

ARBFR ARETT AREFTR ARETT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000

JEE 1< 35 1B 7 3R VAT payable 136 5,831 - -
BIRER Provision for staff and
BAES workers’ bonus and
welfare fund 834 817 - -
HIRKZER Accruals for operating
expenses 5,287 4,519 4,015 2,821
FER T& RAE A Salary and welfare payable 810 1,089 14 11
HAth Others 1,887 1,614 9 487
8,954 13,870 4,038 3,319
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. WMEBRES

ZEZEZF+—A=1+AH ARRABILE
=7 (REAN) E7{EES %10,000,0007T
(HEREEARE#10,611,0000T) 2 7] &
BEH - 2T ERES A #1%54,000,000
BREIRm - SRV SLEEEE250T
(I THAR) RBANTEER_TZT_F
+T— A+ N\RB (JERELFRER) B 25
18 A R BA7E10,000,0007T RiE & 0 HE B
BB T ZE_RAERES - KT
=FRAT/N\BEERIREALRITHEE
BERE REE_RUEBRES -

AIERESGREL LBESRITARAR
REBBHZRREXARAEFPARZE
THREEERME 1% FH KGR -

LA ERTERESIGRETMERIIE - &5
BEEAURAEBRESSTEHE /A
BITHFEBRBEE  BRABRANSE
2,000,000 2 SR EH A EM -

$ AERN-TENF+—A+N\BERE
REMAME  ERAURRESFZZHA
&éﬁﬁm1ﬁ%ﬁz1ﬁhﬁ%

BEBABZEAREEZBARZTRRKRE
BRI RENAeTERRE(RAMBZE
) ARAEFER_TTENF+—A=+
B BE—3H8B ([F—3HA]) ZH%
BIRZ B 50 718 (£ R A $£2,000,000
%ﬁ&@ﬁ%f%5¢2ﬂﬁzmom%
) RABRBREENESBREFEAES
%iﬁﬁn%ﬁmb~:$$@¢+_ﬁ:
+— B Z 813 {4 A& 43,000,000/ 5T ([ =
A —ETRF-_A-F+N\BZHX
742,000,000 T ([E=F#H]) + =
ETRF=-ZRA=F+—BZEENAS
2,000,000  —EERFMNA=+HZ
Al 2 K 41,000,000 7T - TR AR
HRTEE(MBED X - WRE—F 8B
TNFEEFEA -

18. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The Company issued a convertible note of HK$10,000,000
(equivalent of RMB10,611,000) to an independent third party
(the “Subscriber”) on 30 November 2002. The convertible
note is convertible into 4,000,000 shares of the Company
at an initial conversion price of HK$2.50 per share (subject
to adjustment). The Subscriber also has an option to
subscribe for a second convertible note of HK$10,000,000
with an initial conversion price of HK$3.00 per share within
6 months after 18 November 2002, the date of subscription
agreement. The Subscriber has not exercised its option to
subscribe for the second convertible note before the expiry
date, 18 May 2003.

The interest of the convertible note is at a rate per annum
equal to one per cent over the prime lending rate for Hong
Kong Dollars as quoted by the Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited to its customers on the last
business day of the relevant interest period on the principle
amount of the note outstanding.

The maturity date for each convertible note is the second
anniversary date of its issue. The conversion rights could
be exercised after a period 12 months from the respective
dates of issue of the convertible notes and each conversion
shall be in the integral multiples of HK$2,000,000.

On 18 November 2004, the Company and the Subscriber
entered into a supplemental agreement pursuant to which
the maturity date of the convertible note was extended and
the repayment of the outstanding amount was re-scheduled.

Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, subject to the
exercise of the conversion rights by the Subscriber on any
principal outstanding amount of the convertible note, the
Company should on 30 November 2004 (“First Maturity
Date”) repay part of the principal outstanding amount of
the convertible note in the sum of HK$2,000,000 and
HK$250,000 on the account of the interest accrued on the
convertible note up to the First Maturity Date. The remaining
principal outstanding amount of the convertible note shall
then be repaid by four instalments by way of four post-
dated cheques (“Cheques”) dated 31 December 2004
(“Second Maturity Date”), 28 February 2005 (“Third Maturity
Date”), 31 March 2005 and 30 April 2005 in the sum of
HK$3,000,000, HK$2,000,000, HK$2,000,000 and
HK$1,000,000 respectively which were delivered to the
Subscriber on the First Maturity Date.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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18. TEBES (&)

19.

20.

ARBENSE A RE _HEEBHB S5
1& 14 2,250,000/ 7t } 3,000,000/ 7T ° 18
2CAQXARE=ZIHPBEI KRIH
2,000,000/ 7T - RIBEH T - AAR A
REBTENETNEMHEERIBETHA
REEAE R BMBRREEZ2AE REEHRE
EREAKRE  ZEASRETHIEILH
BNKENE+RAEZSEHEEZ2BEER
_IJ: °

BN-—ES
ZEBEAEER  RERFERNT=ARE
Hi o

B#iE

AEBZHEEREZEBHERTE ST E
(ToRfEE ATE)) - e TS 5 818 NE BE X
AE ABURTEAETE  REBREEE
g AEEKEREEAHEEBEESNK
AEEBRR  -EBEREBZHFIAEA
1,000/ T AR - H&Z HFAE 8 BE
HE-R_TTHEE UERKENZH

e
A °

RERXREERT  AEETHBENLZTFA
A AARASBEMATEBIAREAREE
RBE - REBRIEMAHIZET E25-26%
TR EHRARRAE19-20% © A THH
BIBE XAFERNBE@EIMGER
O RRBIMNERSAZIPIREIN -
REBREEFEHZEZSHE -
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20.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The Company has repaid in the sum of HK$2,250,000 and
HK$3,000,000 on the First Maturity Date and Second
Maturity Date respectively. However, the Company has failed
to repay the sum of HK$2,000,000 on the Third Maturity
Date. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, if the
Company fails to fulfil any of its obligations to repay or if
any of the Cheques is dishonoured on its first presentation
on the respective maturity dates, all the outstanding
principal amount of the convertible note and all other sums
payable hereunder will become immediately due and
payable, and such outstanding principal amount of the
convertible note and such other sums shall be charged
default interest at the rate of 15% per annum from the date
of the same being demanded until full payment thereof by
the Company.

DUE TO A DIRECTOR
The amount due is unsecured, interest free and not
repayable within twelve months.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group (the employer) and its employees makes monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earning
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation.
The contributions from each of the employer and employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. For the year ended 31 December
2004, no contribution was forfeited.

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC make
contributions to the basic old age insurance for the Group’s
local staff on a monthly basis pursuant to PRC laws and
regulations to a government agency based on 25% to 26%
of the standard salary set by the provincial government, of
which 19% to 20% is borne by the Group and the remainder
is borne by the staff. The government agency is responsible
for the pension liabilities relating to such staff upon their
retirement. The Group accounts for these contributions on
an accrual basis.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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20. Bik& (&) 20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)
SEHMzBRARSFEWT : The details of the pension contributions made by the Group
were as follows:

—EENE T =F
2004 2003
ARMTRT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RIKSEHEIBA IR Contributions to retirement
schemes 575 473
21. RERBRE 21. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
(a) BA& (a) Share capital
% & EfE HE
Number Nominal Nominal
of shares value value
BT ARE
HK$ RMB
BRERA Authorised share capital
(5 120.05% T (HK$0.05 each)
ZZE=R-ZTME As at 31 December 2003
TZA=1+—B&%%E and 2004 1,200,000,000 60,000,000 63,624,000
BETUHEZRA Issued and fully paid
(5 120.05% 7T) (HK$0.05 each)
ZZE=R-ZTME As at 31 December 2003
TZA=1+—B&%%E and 2004 400,000,000 20,000,000 21,208,000

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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21. BARBRE (&)

(b)

fERESE

BE-_ZFT-—F+—-A+NLHARAR
MBS (TRECERTE]) - &
DA EEZERET SN2 EERR
AREBRE - 2MERBERE (BEE
) URAKEZEHEFTS AR
ZREERE  RAKEHREMHER
MEMALT - AREBEBEIET S R EAM
B RBEEELTMEAERZAE
BRERETRMA THT2BERD
BARE  AATEBEBERTRMNZ
30% (5T BIRREE ) - 2% B AT 8l
EAREENBRENERAREE L
AENSHBETF FEERHESS
RE - BENMFEBA TREE ()XER
BIERZEREORTER © (i)jEE
A2 %A TFH A ZRRENFHK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
(b) Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 19 November 2001 (the “Share Option
Scheme”), the Company may grant options to the
participants of the Share Option Scheme to subscribe
for shares of the Company. The participants include
any employees (including directors) and certain other
persons who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors or a duly authorised committee thereof (the
“Board”), have contributed to the Group. The overall
limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and other
share option schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. Any
option granted under the Share Option Scheme may
be exercised at any time during a period which shall

MER: (I(BREBZBREZ2ZEE not be more than ten years after the date on which the
=00 option is granted. The subscription price will be
determined by the Board and will not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares quoted on
the GEM on the grant date, (ii) the average closing
price of the shares quoted on the GEM for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of
grant.
ERECERENT : The number of share options granted are as follows:
ZBENE
“EEINE t=A
ZEA CEIN -F-H B % BB b3 =t-8
Total As at As at
Categories number of 1 January 31 December
of grantees grantee 2004 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2004
£ 3 4,600,000 - - - 900,000 3,700,000
Directors
8T 16 13,900,000 - - - 1,700,000 12,200,000
Employees
EAT 13 16,200,000 - - - - 16,200,000
Others
34,700,000 - - - 2,600,000 32,100,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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21. REARBRE (&) 21. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(b) BRESE (&) (b) Share option scheme (Continued)
EREBRERENR-_ZEZT_FAHA The above options comprising 29,100,000 and
=T —ARZZEZZFNATBRH 3,000,000 underlying shares were granted at
# tH #9 29,100,000/% % 3,000,0000% ° consideration on 31 May 2002 and 16 August 2002

respectively.

RZEZZFRA=F+—RAELZ The exercise price of 29,100,000 share options granted
29,100,000f Ik #ETE B RERE on 31 May 2002 is HK$2.35 per share. Such options
2.357T ° ’i%ﬁﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁ%ﬁ BEAFR are exercisable to the extent of 25% of the options
B BEATH25% R_TT_F granted to each grantee every year after the date of
N A+75B & H 2 3,000,0000% B8 B 4 grant, and have a duration of 5 years from the date on
Gl AE®2.037T o AJRANKAT(E © which the option was granted. The exercise price of

3,000,000 share options granted on 16 August 2002 is
HK$2.03 per share and such options can be exercised
since granted.

BEARBAZZEE—F+—A+BE Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme
'”*Wzﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬂ C NHIARRREEZA adopted by the Company on 19 November 2001, the
REER QB REE0.058 7T 2 B #E following directors of the Company have personal
(31 V& }\%ﬁT&) ° interests in options to subscribe for ordinary shares in

the Company of HK$0.05 each which have been
granted to them at consideration as follows:

R-—Z2BNE

+=-A=+—H

RE R AE N

BEs REBH BRITEE ATEZRHOEE
Outstanding

number of

share under

Exercise price option as at

Name of director Date of grant per share 31 December 2004

HIgEsE —EE_FRA=+—H 2.35% 7T 2,000,000
Mr. Chin Ying Hoi 31 May 2002 HK$2.35

ZmELRE —EE_FRA=+T—H 2.35% 7T 700,000
Mr. Liu De Fu 31 May 2002 HK$2.35

FHFLLE “ET-FAA=1+—H 2.35% 7T 1,000,000
Mr. Li Sui Yang 31 May 2002 HK$2.35

3,700,000

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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22. f##% 22. RESERVES
L
Group
(BiEE)/
-kih bE%R BHHE  BHAAE
Rags BR0E B -5 B g ait
(Accumulated
General Enterprise ~ Cumulative loss)/
Share Capital reserve expansion exchange retained
premium reserve fund fund diflerence eamings Total

ARRTR  ARETT  ARBTZ  ARRETT  ARETT  ABRTR ARETI
RMBOOO ~ AMBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBOOO  AMBOOO

ZTEZE-F-BHEE A1 Januay 2003 1,476 6,304 2870 1435 8) 43,939 56,016
HERE Foreign exchange

adjustment - - - - (1) - (1)
kREGER Loss attributable to

shareholders - - - - - (51,128) (51,128)

ZEESETCAZT-H A3t December 2003

BE 1476 6,304 28710 1435 9) (7189) 4887
NERE Foreign exchange adjustment - - . . 9 B} 9
REELEE Loss atfributable to

shareholders - - - - - (35,601) (35,601)

ZEEMET-A=T-H At 31 December 2004

BE 1,476 6,304 2,870 1,43 (7) (42,790) (30,712)
AL
Company
R A 8 EEid-1 ] RER Ch
Share Merger  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
AREBTT  AREFTT  ARETT AEBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“ZE-F-A-A%E At 1 January 2003 1,476 23,996 (4,877) 20,595
BRREGER Loss attributable to
shareholders - - (15,708) (15,708)
ZZE=FFTZA=+—HHBE At 31 December 2003 1,476 23,996 (20,585) 4,887
BRREGER Loss attributable to
shareholders - - (35,599) (35,599)
“ZEWETZA=T—HHBE At 31 December 2004 1,476 23,996 (56,184) (30,712)
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22. f##E (&)

ELRR  ARELEARREELEBN
REARKMBBARLIZ FAF - EER
FEEBERENERAERAERELR
R tREEEBMRRELEBRELRE
BRI R G R R A S
MRA(ThE 2 2RI ]) mEHETERE F
BR B IR AR R & ARLB 20 IR A B R B R B
TEAEMRE  AFEEES  CXRBERESM
BTRBLRENES  -ZERHEFTANET
Mz HRREEES SRS ERERRE
ME10% - FHEES  CEZERESMBT
RELENESNRERRRESARESS
HURTEHETT - RIEESKARE RILER -
AAREMERETERREIRER - PEER
AeRERERMAR  TAREREER -
BTRBLBRNEASEREARB TR
FUHERBIEREN  MEBBZAETER
MEETRR/EREE - BITEBREHNE
EHEBGIER TR BELER AE YRS
YREREIE -

ERFRARMEEREESDS TR AR AR
FEBEE  EEEFMNEBERNFERRE
T EERERESMB T RERENAAL
FIERAEE -

AEBzZAHRBLIERNANFEEREER
B ARBETHRAAKBHERR 2K
MZEEARENBERRINER 2 FEEL
EH

22. RESERVES (Continued)

Jian-O’Yuan, Beijing Jian ePayment and Wuhan Jian
ePayment are subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC. These
subsidiaries have to follow the laws and regulations of the
PRC and its Articles of Association in setting up certain
reserve funds. They are required to provide for certain
statutory funds, namely, general reserve fund, enterprise
expansion fund, staff and workers’ bonus and welfare fund
which are appropriated from net profit after taxation but
before dividend distribution based on their statutory
accounts prepared in accordance with the accounting
principles and relevant financial regulations applicable to
enterprises established in the PRC (the “PRC GAAP”). These
funds are created for specific purposes. The appropriation
of the general fund reserve is no less than 10% of the net
profit after taxation and appropriations to enterprise
expansion fund and staff and workers’ bonus and welfare
fund are at the discretion of the directors of the respective
subsidiaries. The general reserve fund can only be used,
upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. The enterprise
expansion fund can only be used to increase capital upon
approval by the relevant authority. The staff and workers’
bonus and welfare fund can only be used for special bonus
or collective welfare of its employees, and assets acquired
through this fund shall not be treated as assets of the Group.
Staff and workers’ bonus and welfare fund are charged to
expenses as incurred and recorded as a liability in the
balance sheet under HK GAAP.

When the statutory reserve fund is not sufficient to
compensate for any losses of the above subsidiaries from
previous years, current year net profit shall be used to
make good for the losses before allocations are set aside
for the general reserve fund, enterprise expansion fund or
staff and worker’s bonus and welfare fund.

Merger reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued
by the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries
acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to the
Group Reorganisation in previous year.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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BREREHSLAE  BRDBEMAHFHRE
AR R T BOR - MR ()R RN D IKIE E
EEEIHAE  RMEEEZAEREE
AmRERREAERD BITRAZEM -
AR R RN B EIRIRM S - AR &
B BAREBRAHREEELDK -

EEB
EEHRBA2HBRARBEEIAEEREZRAE
BETRRAERZHRERAERS -

22,

23.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (Continued)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, share
premium and merger reserve are distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of share premium, capital reserve and merger reserve
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its share capital account.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
difference under the liability method using taxation rates
applicable to the companies comprising the Group.

CEREFERG : Temporary differences are mainly arising from:
—EENE —ZTT=F
2004 2003
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HHOMB AR 25T EE Accumulated losses of some
of its subsidiaries 17,655 22,149
FERE Provision for inventory
obsolescence 5,666 3,739
ZIRERE Provision for doubtful accounts 15,851 10,394
& & ERE Provision for fixed assets 32,639 10,774
H Others 136 —
71,947 47,056
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23. IEEHIE (&)

23.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

AERBFBREZEBEREHBEEESRN The potential deferred tax assets not provided for the
I accounts amounted to:
—EENE —ZTT=F
2004 2003
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BOWEB AR 2 R EE Accumulated losses of some of
its subsidiaries 5,826 7,309
FERE Provision for inventory
obsolescence 1,870 1,234
ZIRER Provision for doubtful accounts 5,231 3,430
EEEERE Provision for fixed assets 10,771 3,555
Hh Others 45 —
23,743 15,528

REERERE - LHMEANHREHEEH
R - PR 6 R T R B
8 MHHEBERBEREZAR - FM
DB R E A HBERBAE AR
wi -

R-FEMF A= +—AREBZEL
BEZENMAMT :

At the balance sheet date, there were no material
unprovided deferred tax liabilities. Deferred tax assets
arising from above temporary differences have not been
recognised as it is uncertain that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The expiry date of the deferred tax assets not provided as
at 31 December 2004 is as follows:

—B2ME _—TIT=F

2004 2003

ARMFRT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ZE =3 Expire in 2-3 years 306 -
= Z Y3 H Expire in 3-4 years 1,506 529
ME R FEE Expire in 4-5 years 4,014 6,780
B A No expire date 17,917 8,219
23,743 15,528

BREHEARKNBECEAEHETIROIE
T ARERINPEARLAMEAL
MEBARCBRAGERMENARRAFZ
ERBEAME -

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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According to Provisional Regulations on PRC Enterprise
Income Tax No. 11, tax losses of the PRC subsidiaries of
the Group can be carried forward to offset future assessable
profit for a period of 5 years.

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥




Il

x M=

24 mEBRERER

(a) REGFHRALEZTHZHE(RE)

M B W
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(a) Reconciliation of operating loss to cash (outflow)/

RABEHE inflow from operating activities
—EENE —TT=F
2004 2003
AR®FrT ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KEBE Operating loss (34,986) (50,139)
e Depreciation 9,612 9,447
EEEERE Impairment of fixed assets 20,435 10,774
7 5 Amortisation of goodwill - 209
P RE Impairment of goodwill - 1,359
EREE Provision for doubtful debts 2,413 8,394
FE#EE Provision for inventories - 3,739
FERE RO Reversal of provision for inventories (1,812) -
HEEEYRI L KLEEHR Operating loss before working
capital changes (4,338) (16,217)
JiE Wt R B AR R A (38 0n) Decrease/(increase) in due from
related companies 371 (346)
HMn#EERD Decrease in other current assets - 1,784
FEfTREEE A (3 a0) R Increase/(decrease) in due to
related companies 509 (14)
R TR L () (Decrease)/increase in deposits
from customers (378) 1,106
FERD Decrease in inventories 2,155 777
B 5 & H A FE UK (Increase)/decrease in trade
(g m) /m A and other receivables (3,801) 34,311
B 5 & H A FE A FOR Decrease in trade and other
payables (4,758) (5,607)
KETHEEZRSF Cash (outflow)/inflow
(md) /WA from operatiing activities (10,240) 15,794
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24, MEBRERER (B)
(b) BEeRELLEEYIN

B % ] &k W &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

—EENE —ZT=F
2004 2003
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Re Cash on hand 930 33
RITHFER Cash at banks 5,498 16,988
6,428 17,021
o =AM £ EE Less: Time deposits with
T original maturity of
more than 3 months - (5,300)
6,428 11,721

25. EiE
(a) AERER—EHERTAZEREKIE

25. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments in relation to investment in a

PRC company:

—EENE —TT=F

2004 2003

ARMTRT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BEENEREBE Contracted but not provided for 28,200 -
RZZETZMF=A_+_H  KARRFH On 22 March 2004, the Company entered into an
REMARERBEBEARAA([HZ agreement (“the Agreement”) with Wuhan
AREB)FILTHE - B - A4 Transportation Group Company Limited (“Wuhan

AIMEENBAREL SR (FE)
BERERAFBRERZARERZ
2ETFRAREMAARBEKRERH
RAFAIM70%EZ  REAARK
28,200,0007T * EEEEBEXH ' R
BRI -

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
2 Z B B 2 &£ 8 B A 7

Transportation Group”). Pursuant to the Agreement,
Jian epayment (China) International Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, will acquire
70% equity interest in Wuhan Traffic IC Card
Management Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Wuhan Transportation Group, at a consideration of
RMB28,200,000. At the balance sheet date, the
consideration has not been paid by the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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NOTES TO THE

25. &I (&)

(b)

REHERE
RZZEENF+=-_A=+—08 " £ER
BRI 2 AT E MR KRR T
ZREBEMKBELT :

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Commitments under operating leases
At 31 December 2004, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

oy
Land and buildings
—EZmE —TT=
2004 2003
ARBFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

—FUR
“ERFHUR

ARBEEHERE MM  ZF
HERFENGAH—E2=F YA&ER
N HEMA G RER - ZFHELE
BREKXEHRSE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥

Not later than one year 168 1,090

Later than one year and
not later than five years 103 963
271 2,053

The Group leases plant and office premises under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the
leases included contingent rentals.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. ERBALRS 26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

ERENERIEREGN ST - HHE
ETHHREERREEH S - HITEEXR
FEN DRRSEET - WESTHRH
RA—ZEHHFA-—ERZE - BITEE SE
R -

(a) BBLTEWEBRE
BEs B8

Name

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to controls the other or exercise
significant influence over the other in making financial and
operating decision. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.

(@) Name and relationship of related parties

HEHAER
Relationship with the Company

LIRELEXEEFRAA
(TERELEEX])

Beijing Jian Enterprise (Group) Co. Ltd.
(“Beijing Jian Enterprise”)

LERELEMREEARAA ([ELERE])
Beijing Jian-Tech Co. Ltd. (“Jian-Tech”)

IREZEBRAEBRAA ([IEREL])
Beijing Huapu International Plaza
Co. Ltd (“Beijing Huapu”)

ERELHBEEARAR
Qingdao Huapu Business Union Building
Co. Ltd. ("Qingdao Huapu”)

BOEEYBAEERFERAA
(MBOEBRA])

Haikou Huapu Lide Parking
Management Co. Ltd.
(“Haikou Project Company”)

BERAEFEEZARAERAA
(TEEBEB AR

Weihai TianChuang Electronic
System Co., Ltd.
(“Weihai Project Company”)

BRGAERDIRELTREBERRGIE L QA
A company ultimately owned by Mr. Chin Ying Hoi and
Ms. Ya Zhen Quan, the shareholders of the

ultimate holding company

LIRELEXZFAA
Subsidiary of Beijing Jian Enterprise

LIREEEXRZT AR

Subsidiary of Beijing Jian Enterprise

BREAERDRELTHEEBERRFR L QA

A company ultimately owned by Mr. Chin Ying Hoi and
Ms. Ya Zhen Quan

LIREEEXFAE49% Ei

Being 49% owned by Beijing Jian Enterprise

LR A H20% 2 35

Being 20% owned by Jian-Tech

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
¥ w = B % &£ &8 B 2 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥ #§
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26. EBALRE (&)

(a) BBEEBRBAR (B)

BEs B8

Name

M B W
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Name and relationship of related parties
(Continued)

HEBAER
Relationship with the Company

HEELFAAERRERARAA
(lEZEBRA])

Nanning Huapu Zhengfang Parking
Construction and Management Co., Ltd.
("Nanning Project Company”)

BNEREFREERFR LA
(TgMEBERA])

Zhengzhou Daokang Electronic Parking
Management Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou Project Company”)

HEREEFREERARADA
(TEEmEB AR

Yichang Wuhua Electronic Parking
Management Co., Ltd.
("Yichang Project Company”)

2RBT RN ERAA
(REELEB™])

Huapu Supermarket (Wuhan) Co. Ltd.
(“Wuhan Huapu Supermarket”)

ITRELERAEEZRERAERAA
(MHemmE B 2RA])

Beijing Huapu Roadside Parking
Facilities Construction and Management
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Project Company”)

REMEELEERERAA
(THEEB A

Wuhan Parking Operation Mangment Co., Ltd.

(“Wuhan Project Company”)

BEMEFREEERRAA
(TEMEBRA])

Guangzhou Electronic Parking
Management Co. Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Project Company”)

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥

R-_ZEZTME=-F+ N\AH
EEMRTAEH30B

Being 30% owned by Jian-Tech
up to 18 February 2004

LR H H20% 2

Being 20% owned by Jian-Tech

IEREEERFAEH20%

Being 20% owned by Beijing Jian Enterprise

IRELERFEB64%

Being 64% owned by Beijing Jian Enterprise

EERFFE100%E =

Being 100% owned by Jian-Tech

ELRRFA49%E D

Being 49% owned by Jian-Tech

RZZEZMNFLALAA
LREEEXFHA9%E D
Being 49% owned by Beijing
Jian Enterprise up to
7 July 2004

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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B B W &k Mt =
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. BEEBALTRS (&) 26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(o) EXBBRS (b) Significant related party transactions
BRI IR BRI B EIN - AN E R Save as disclosed elsewhere in this set of financial
GHENTHRESHRRAUEEHERR statement, the Group had the following material
MG ETHERR S ¢ transactions with related parties, which the directors

considered were in the normal course of businesses:

—EEQNF —TE=F
2004 2003
AR¥F AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
()  REBEEE T HE WM - ()  Sales of hardware and software,
RERGESRE provision of systems integration
RZSMEEREHBA services and transaction levies:
HIEH R A Haikou Project Company 136 123
BMIEE A Guangzhou Project Company 284 247
BEIEE A A Weihai Project Company 24 19
EEA QA Nanning Project Company 15 106
LIPIDERENG Zhengzhou Project Company - 20
HEEHB QA Yichang Project Company 28 15
REELHEM Wuhan Huapu Supermarket 19 55
IERIBERAA Beijing Project Company 66 -
HEZEIEEB QA Wuhan Project Company 3,453 -
4,025 585
(i) HEZEFR (i) Sales of Smart Cards:
HIEH R A Haikou Project Company 154 -
BEIEE A A Weihai Project Company 10 -
IERIBERAA Beijing Project Company 93 -
HEZEIEEB QA Wuhan Project Company 163 -
REELHEM Wuhan Huapu Supermarket 7 -
491 -
(i) BT Sk R AT B B T A A (iii)  Operating leases rentals paid/payable
HEZHSE : to:
IREL Beijing Huapu 620 937
PEFEE EFE Mr. Chin Ying Hoi, a director 382 382
1,002 1,319

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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B B W &k Mt =
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. EBBALIRE 26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) BAM S EAER (c) Balances with related companies
£E NG|
Group Company
ZBEEME C-TT=F ZEEMF —2Z=
2004 2003 2004 2003
ARETRE  AREFT  ARETR AEBTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
RPEDELE 2B Balance from trading activities:
BEERYES Included in trade receivables:
BOEEATA Haikou Project Company 46 234 - -
BAEE AT Weihai Project Company 2,492 2,473 - -
BMIEE A Zhengzhou Project Company - 5 - -
HEEHEAA Yichang Project Company 4,341 4,313 - -
REELET Wuhan Huapu Supermarket - 54 - -
EREE A Beijing Project Company 60 - - -
REBERAF Wuhan Project Company 51 - - -
6,990 7,079 - -
BIRER Provision for doubtful accounts (6,775) (6,870) - -
215 209 - -
BEEBYERES Included in deposits from customers:
EMIEE A7 Guangzhou Project Company - 277 - -
EESCIERNG Nanning Project Company - 243 - -
- 520 - -
NG Due from related companies:
TRELEZE Beijing Jian Enterprise 20 200 - -
ELHX Jian-Tech - 191 - -
20 391 - -
TR A A - Due to related companies:
ELHR Jian-Tech 209 - - -
EREE A Beijing Project Company 300 - - -
509 - - _
BN R ER AT Due to the ultimate holding company 1,099 818 - -

W=FEME+=A=+—A - EiE

A EE - BN '

& bR REZER

BAR - RRAEZEEBTRAIENE
BEE  REBARXBEBHAN
WA - BRIEATHE B REE

g o

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥

As at 31 December 2004, the amounts due from,
Haikiu, Weihai, Zhengzhou, Yichang, Beijing and
Wuhan Project Companies and Wuhan Huapu
Supermarket were derived from the sales of software
and hardware, provision of systems integration services
and transaction levies. The balances were non-interest
bearing and were repayable on demand.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. BEEBALTRS (&)

(c)

(d)

B R (B)

P LA R B A RO A A B % T A A R
ZIRAFNRIARTE L - EEREE
i o

ELEXRMEFREETEFZHBE

FEEXEE (BEMYREEERE
ReXImReEREZKERTA &
TERAKERESGKERAR) BA
SEcETEFIIVAERE - Bt
FEREXSERBMETEREBARR
RABMEFPIFLMBEED - EEEX
SERMANFEARTFELEERFR
Aot o EREPRBIF=T7
MELEXEBRRERERFTELZME
fIfcHE - MERSEEEERBRELL -
HERBEFPZERBWT ¢

HETZEREFPZEBEMT ¢

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Balances with related companies (Continued)
Balance with related companies and the ultimate
holding company from other activities were non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

Relationship between the Jian Enterprise Group and
certain customers of the Group

The Jian Enterprise Group, which consists of a group
of companies ultimately owned by Mr. Chin Ying Hoi
and Ms. Ya Zhen Quan, entered into co-operative
arrangements with certain customers of the Group
whereby the Jian Enterprise Group agreed to finance
such customers for the implementation of Jian
ePayment System. In return, Jian Enterprise Group can
share the revenue from the operations of Jian ePayment
Systems with the customers. Such customers are
independent third parties and Jian Enterprise Group
does not have any equity interests in these customers
and does not involve in the operations of Jian ePayment
System.

The amounts of sales made to these customers were

as follows:
£
Group
—EENE _—TT=F
2004 2003
ARMFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REMEEFRRER Parking Meter Administration
EEMAE Office of Wuhan Municipal
(REBB AR Government (“Wuhan Project
Company”) - 1,287
ERTHAGEZETIERA Beijing Municipal Changyang District
(MBIEAR) Construction Engineering Company
([tmBERAAL) (Municipal Engineering Company)
(“Beijing Project Company”) - 43
- 1,330

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
#2 X B B R #£ 8 R 24 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. BEREBALRS (&) 26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) BELEXKRERIKEEETEFZERE (d) Relationship between the Jian Enterprise Group and
(%) certain customers of the Group (Continued)
RZFEMFT-A=+—HB BZF As at 31 December 2004, the balances with these
EFERBBEMOT customers were as follows:
%8
Group
—EEQNF —TE=F
2004 2003
AR®Fr AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERE S EBERA Included in trade receivables
FBBEEAQA Qingdao Project Company 167 167
IRBERRAA Beijing Project Company 28 28
195 195
IR EE Provision for doubtful accounts (180) (167)
15 28
BERBERERA Included in deposits from customers
REEERA Wuhan Project Company - 202
27. BRERAF 27. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
EEZERRARAZREERATR/ERBR The directors of the Company consider Union Perfect
Z BB K MK A A Union Perfect International Limited, a company incorporated in the British
International Limited ° Virgin Islands, to be the ultimate holding company.
28. IREEB 28. APPROVED OF ACCOUNTS
REERADR-ZZTAF=A=-1+HBH The accounts were approved by the board of directors on
ExemB- 29 March 2005.

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 £ 1§ ;E’”;ngge'; S%Sr%mSBELirgiregj
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FEFBR CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS
(UAREFTE) (Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)
BE+t-A=1+-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—TTTF =TT —TT-F ZTT=F CZZTENF
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AR¥EFR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEE Turnover 23,818 40,008 60,688 3,407 8,173
me (B8 /FE Operating (loss)/profit 13,716 15,294 23,957 (51,555) (37,936)
G ON Subsidy income - 5,161 1,620 1,416 2,950
FEWA Interest income 22 106 112 116 7
FlE X Interest expenses - (444) (1,308) (1,105) (622)
BrELAT(EI8) /BF  (Loss)/profit before taxation 13,738 20,117 24,381 (51,128) (35,601)
IR Taxation - — - - -

BRBERINBAOE  (Loss)/profit after
M B %A (B518) /  taxation but before

ikl minority interests 13,738 20,117 24,381 (51,128) (35,601)
DPERRES Minority interests (56) (215) (45) - -
R EN(ER) (Loss)/profit attributable

it to shareholders 13,682 19,902 24,336 (51,128) (35,601)
ReEEREXR CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(UAREFTE) (Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

Rt=ZB=t+-H

As at 31 December
ZETFE —TT—F —TT-F -—TT-F ZFENF
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
ARETT AR®FTrT AREFT AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BTEE Fixed assets 780 891 57,466 38,906 8,130
[EES Goodwill 1,986 1,777 1,568 - -
FnB(aBE) EE Net current (liabilities)/assets 3,078 50,520 28,801 (12,811) (12,329)
DPERR RS Minority interests (72) (287) - - -
BE/(BR) Total assets less
FE current liabilities 5,772 52,901 87,835 26,095 (4,199)
BERR Representing:
RHaE Non-current liabilities - - 10,611 - 5,305
A Share capital - 21,208 21,208 21,208 21,208
1 Reserves 5,772 31,693 56,016 4,887 (30,712)
5,772 52,901 87,835 26,095 (4,199)

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
the members of Jian ePayment Systems Limited (the “Company”)
will be held at Unit 102, 1/F, Crocodile House I, 50 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong on 21 April 2005 at 11:00 a.m. for the
following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial
statements and the reports of the directors and auditors for
the year ended 31 December, 2004.

2. To re-elect the retiring directors, namely Mr. Zhang Xiao
Jing and Ms. Tung Fong and to authorize the board of
directors to fix all the directors’ remuneration.

3. To re-appoint auditors of the Company and to authorize the
board of directors to fix their remuneration.

4. To consider as special business, and if thought fit, pass,
with or without amendments, the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution of the Company:

“THAT:

(A) subject to paragraph (C) of this resolution, pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”), the exercise by the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with (otherwise than by way of rights issue or pursuant
to the exercise of options granted under any of the
Company’s share option schemes or any scrip dividend
scheme or similar arrangements providing for the
allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a
dividend on shares of the Company pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company from time to
time) additional shares in the share capital of the
Company and to make or grant any offers, agreements
and options which would or might require the exercise
of such powers, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(B) the approval in paragraph (A) of this resolution shall
be in addition to any other authorization given to the
directors and shall authorize the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) to make or grant any offers, agreements and
options which would or might require the exercise of
such powers either during or after the end of the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined);

(C) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted
or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued
by the directors of the Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (A) above shall not exceed 20%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of the passing of
this resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
#? X B B R #£ 8 R 24 7
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5.

(D) for the purposes of this resolution, “Relevant Period”
means the period from the passing of this resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the Articles of Association of the
Company or any applicable laws to be held; or

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given
under this resolution by an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting;

“rights issue” means the allotment or issue of
shares in the Company or other securities which
would or might require shares to be allotted and
issued pursuant to an offer made to all the
shareholders of the Company (excluding for such
purpose any shareholder who is resident in a
place where such offer is not permitted under the
laws of that place) and, where appropriate, the
holders of other equity securities of the Company
entitled to such offer, pro rata (apart from fractional
entitlements) to their existing holdings of shares
or such other equity securities.

To consider as special business, and if thought fit, pass,
with or without amendments, the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution:

“THAT:

(A) subject to paragraph (B) of this resolution, the exercise
by the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined in resolution 4(D) set out in the
Notice of this Meeting) of all the powers of the
Company to repurchase the issued shares of the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or any other stock
exchange on which shares in the capital of the
Company may be listed and which is recognized by
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to
and in accordance with all applicable laws and the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules or any other
stock exchange as amended from time to time, be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;
and

(B) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the
Company which the Company is authorized to
repurchase pursuant to the approval in paragraph (A)
of this resolution during the Relevant Period (as defined
in resolution 4(D) set out in the Notice of this Meeting)
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount
of the issued share capital of the Company at the date
of the passing of this resolution, and the said approval
shall be limited accordingly.”

ANNUAL REPORT 2004 ¥
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ANNUAL REPORT 2004 £

GENERAL MEETING

To consider as special business, and if thought fit, pass,
with or without amendments, the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution:

“THAT conditional upon the passing of resolutions Nos. 4
and 5 (as set out in the Notice of this, Meeting), the
unconditional general mandate granted to the directors of
the Company and for the time being in force to exercise all
the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
shares of the Company pursuant to resolution No. 4 (as set
out in the Notice of this Meeting) be and is hereby extended
by the addition to the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company which may be allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by
the directors of the Company pursuant to such unconditional
general mandate of an amount representing the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
repurchased by the Company under the authority granted
pursuant to resolution No. 5 (as set out in the Notice of this
Meeting), provided that such extended amount shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of passing this
resolution.”

As special business, to consider and if thought fit, pass
with or without any amendments, the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

“THAT the existing Scheme Mandate Limit in respect of the
granting of share options under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 19 November 2001 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) be renewed provided that the total
number of shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the
Company (each a “Share”) which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company
must not exceed 10% of the Share in issue at the date of
approval of such renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit.”

By Order of the Board of
Jian ePayment Systems Limited
Chin Ying Hoi
Chairman

Beijing, The PRC, Tuesday, 29 March 2005

Notes:

1.

Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting shall be entitled to
appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A
member who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint more than
one proxy to represent him and vote on his behalf at a general meeting of
the Company or at a class meeting. A proxy need not be a member. In
addition, a proxy or proxies representing a member who is an individual or
a member which is a corporation shall be entitled to exercise the same
powers on behalf of the member which he or they represent as such member
could exercise.

The instrument appointing a proxy and (if require by the board of directors)
the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or
a certified copy thereof, shall be delivered to the Company’s branch share
registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the r)erson named in the instrument proposes to vote or,
in the case of a poll taken subsequently to the date of a meeting or
adjourned meeting, not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for
the taking of the poll and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be
treated as valid.

Delivery of an instrument appointing a proxy shall not preclude a member
from attending and voting in person at the meeting concerned and in such
event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

Jian ePayment Systems Limited
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